FGCU Board of Trustees Audit and Compliance Committee - December 3, 2018

AGENDA
FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Audit and Compliance Committee
Monday, December 3, 2018

10 a.m. to (estimated) 11 a.m.

EDWARDS HALL, ROOM #309
FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY

Indicated times within the agenda are approximate and are subject to change.
Agenda items may be taken out of order at the call of the Chair and with the
concurrence of the Committee.
Committee Members:
Trustee Joseph Fogg III – Chair
Trustee Darleen Cors
Trustee Leo Montgomery
Trustee Stephen Smith

10 a.m.

Call to Order, Roll Call, and Opening Remarks – Chair Joseph
Fogg III
Consent Agenda (Includes Public Comment) – Chair Joseph
Fogg III
 Minutes of September 11, 2018 Meeting (TAB #1)

Action (Includes Public Comment):
 International Travel: Outgoing Students and Faculty
Audit – Director of Internal Audit William Foster (TAB #2)
 Florida Gulf Coast University Financing Corporation,
Inc. Independent Auditor's Report Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2018 – Director of Internal Audit William Foster
(TAB #3)
 Florida Gulf Coast University Foundation, Inc.
Independent Auditor's Report Fiscal Year Ended June
30, 2018 – Director of Internal Audit William Foster (TAB #4)
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Compliance Office Charter – Director of Equity, Ethics and
Compliance, and Title IX Coordinator Precious Gunter (TAB
#5)
Audit and Compliance Committee Charter – Director of
Internal Audit William Foster, and Director of Equity, Ethics
and Compliance, and Title IX Coordinator Precious Gunter
(TAB #6)

Information:
 Update on Board of Governors Construction Funding
Certification and Audit – Director of Internal Audit William
Foster
Old Business – Chair Joseph Fogg III
New Business – Chair Joseph Fogg III

10:55 a.m.

Closing Remarks, and Adjournment – Chair Joseph Fogg
III

(END)
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AGENDA INDEX
FGCU Board of Trustees
Audit and Compliance Committee
December 3, 2018
Tab #

Item

Action/Information
Committee Action (Consent
Agenda)

1

Minutes of September 11, 2018 Meeting

2

International Travel: Outgoing Students and Faculty Audit

3
4

Florida Gulf Coast University Financing Corporation, Inc. Independent Auditor's
Report Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
Florida Gulf Coast University Foundation, Inc. Independent Auditor's Report
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Committee Action
Committee Action
Committee Action

5

Compliance Office Charter

Committee Action

6

Audit and Compliance Committee Charter

Committee Action
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ITEM: __1__
Florida Gulf Coast University Board of Trustees
Audit and Compliance Committee
December 3, 2018

SUBJECT: Minutes of September 11, 2018

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION
Approve minutes
BACKGROUND INFORMATION
The Audit and Compliance Committee met on September 11, 2018. Minutes of
the meeting were kept as statutorily required.

Supporting Documentation Included: Minutes of September 11, 2018
Prepared by: Transcription Experts and Assistant Director of Board Operations
Tiffany Jackson
Legal Review by: N/A
Submitted by: Vice President and Chief of Staff Susan Evans
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
Tuesday, September 11, 2018
COHEN CENTER BALLROOM, ROOM #203
Florida Gulf Coast University
Minutes
Members:
Present: Trustee Joseph Fogg III – Chair; Trustee Darleen Cors; and Trustee Stephen
Smith.
Not Present: Trustee Leo Montgomery (Excused Absence).
Others:
Staff: President Michael Martin; Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs James
Llorens; Vice President for Administrative Services and Finance, and Executive Director
of FGCU Financing Corporation Steve Magiera; Vice President for University
Advancement, and Executive Director of FGCU Foundation Chris Simoneau; Vice
President and Chief of Staff Susan Evans; Vice President and General Counsel Vee
Leonard; Vice President for Students Success and Enrollment Management Mitchell
Cordova; Director of Internal Audit Bill Foster; Director of Equity, Ethics and
Compliance, and Title IX Coordinator Precious Gunter; Director of Operations Tiffany
Reynolds; Assistant Director of Board Operations Tiffany Jackson; Project Manager
Melissa Pind; and Executive Assistant to the Vice President and Chief of Staff Bruna
Ugolotti.

Item 1: Call to Order, Roll Call, and Opening Remarks
Chair Joseph Fogg called the meeting to order at 8:02 a.m. He welcomed all members
and said the meeting had been duly noticed. He requested Vice President and Chief of
Staff Susan Evans to call the roll. Roll call was taken with three of four Committee
members present, thus meeting quorum requirements. Trustee Leo Montgomery was
granted an excused absence.
Chair Fogg welcomed Trustee Stephen Smith, a new member to the Committee, and
Ms. Precious Gunter, who with new duties recently received the revised title of FGCU
Director of Equity, Ethics and Compliance, and Title IX Coordinator.
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Item 2: Consent Agenda (See Tab #1)
Chair Fogg stated there was one item on the Consent Agenda, the Minutes of the May
1, 2018 meeting.
Trustee Darleen Cors made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. Trustee S. Smith
seconded the motion. There was no public comment or Committee discussion. The
vote was 2-0 in favor of the motion with Trustee S. Smith abstaining as he had not
attended the last meeting.

Item 3: Action Items (See Tabs #2-5)
Chair Fogg stated there were four action items. He asked Director of Internal Audit Bill
Foster to present the items.
FGCU 2017-2018 Internal Audit Annual Report (TAB #2)
Mr. Foster stated this report has been prepared to comply with Board of Governors
Regulation 4.002. He added if the report was approved by the Committee, a
recommendation would be forwarded to the full Board for its approval.
Mr. Foster said all audits were performed in accordance with the Institute of Internal
Auditors International Standards for Professional Practice of Internal Auditing. All
significant observations were reported.
Mr. Foster explained the work plan and each individual audit were risk-driven, and his
office had received cooperation from management and staff. He thanked President
Martin, the Audit and Compliance Committee, and the full Board for their continued
support, along with the staff of the Office of Internal Audit for their work and dedication.
Mr. Foster stated according to the standards, internal assessments needed to be
implemented to include ongoing monitoring of the performance of the internal audit
activity and periodic self-assessments. He said the staff of the Office of the Internal
Audit conducted a variety of internal assessments during the course of their routine
audit processes. He said after the completion of each audit, additional staff members
reviewed the audit materials. In addition to the Office’s Operations Manual and Charter,
guidelines were established to provide a framework so that all necessary elements of
the process were completed and documented.
Mr. Foster said the Office of the Internal Audit staff members were members of various
organizations to keep current on internal audit and university audit activities. These
memberships included the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA), the Association of College
and University Auditors (ACUA), the Information Systems Audit and Control Association
(ISACA), the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners (ACFE), the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), the Florida Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (FICPA), and the State University Audit Council (SUAC). He added during
2017-2018 two members of his Office had served as treasurer and president of the
Southwest Florida Chapter of the Institute of Internal Auditors; and during 2017-2018,
2
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each member of his Office had met the requirement for Continuing Professional
Education (CPE) hours.
Mr. Foster stated in the annual report, there was a schedule of audits for the coming
year.
Chair Fogg called for further comments. Hearing none, he asked for a motion.
Trustee S. Smith made a motion to approve the FGCU 2017-2018 Internal Audit Annual
Report and to recommend it to the FGCU Board of Trustees. Trustee Cors seconded
the motion. There was no public comment or Committee discussion. The vote was 3-0
in favor of the motion.
2018-2019 Internal Audit Work Plan (TAB # 3)
Mr. Foster stated he was requesting the Audit and Compliance Committee’s approval
for the proposed audits to be performed in the following year.
Mr. Foster stated the audits his Office will perform and oversee this year are the
Performance Measures Data Integrity Audit, Degree Works, Vester Marine and
Environmental Science Research Field Station, and Information Technology Security.
Trustee S. Smith asked how the determination of which audits to conduct each year
was made.
Mr. Foster responded that during each year, his Office maintained an awareness of
what had changed in the University, and kept current on what risks and opportunities
existed. He said in 2015, his staff had conducted a “deep dive” and started at the
Division level down to department level, doing an extensive analysis of what risks and
opportunities could be noted. He said each year his Office adjusted its priorities. For
example, this year Student Success was a new initiative and his staff would examine if
there were any audits which would cause FGCU to not achieve the goals associated
with the initiative.
Chair Fogg called for questions or discussion. Hearing none, he called for a motion.
Trustee S. Smith made a motion to approve the 2018-2019 Internal Audit Work Plan
and recommend it to the FGCU Board of Trustees. Trustee Cors seconded the motion.
There was no public comment or Committee discussion. The vote was 3-0 in favor of
the motion.
Academic Camps and Conferences Audit (TAB #4)
Mr. Foster explained this report represented a limited scope audit of academic camps,
conferences, and other enrichment programs. FGCU’s regulations, policies, procedures
and guidelines govern the use of University facilities and revenue collection applicable
to camps.
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Mr. Foster said the Office of Campus Conference Programs (CCP) and other applicable
departments should strengthen procedural controls of camps, conferences, and other
enrichment programs by addressing the weaknesses identified in the report. He stated
the objectives were to determine the following: whether FGCU academic camps,
conferences, or similar programs were conducted in compliance with applicable state
statutes, university policies and procedures, and other applicable guidelines; whether
additional guidelines, policies, or procedures are needed to provide the necessary
control policies to govern these activities; and whether appropriate fees and revenues
are collected in accordance with University procedures and guidelines, and sound
business practices.
Mr. Foster stated for the audit a mix of camps, conferences, and other enrichment
programs that were operated during fall 2016, spring 2017 and summer 2017 semesters
were reviewed. He said during that time period there was a record of 143 camps,
conferences and other enrichment programs conducted. The 143 events were
compiled and cross referenced from lists provided by CCP, Student Affairs,
Environmental Health and Safety, and colleges within Academic Affairs. He said a risk
based analysis was conducted to select 20 events for review. The majority of the
events selected for review utilized services from CCP or reserved space through
Campus Reservations; however, not all University camps, conferences or other
enrichment programs were required or need to be processed through CCP or Campus
Reservations. He said as an example, off-campus events or those not requiring
services or conference room space need not contact CCP for their event.
Mr. Foster explained the Campus Conference Programs department was coordinating a
working group (consisting of representatives from the Office of General Counsel,
Human Resources, Environmental Health and Safety, and Finance and Accounting) to
establish specific camp packages that each camp administrator would be responsible
for completing. He said these packages would outline: (1) General Counsel approved
waivers for campers, adults, and personnel involved in the camp program; (2)
Appropriate procedures for Department of Children and Families (DCF) State required
background checks through the Office of Human Resources; (3) Mandatory and
optional insurance requirements for all camps from the department of Environmental
Health and Safety (EHS); and (4) Appropriate cash collection procedures for all camps
from the Finance and Accounting department.
Mr. Foster explained a Campus Conference Program employee would be responsible
for ensuring all camp administrators had the required waivers with insurance and
background checks completed before participating in the program. He said each
respective vice president should inform his/her division of the camp requirements and
that the Campus Conference Programs department was designated to coordinate and
ensure that all camp requirements (background screenings, University waivers,
insurance, and appropriate fee collection procedures) were completed.
Mr. Foster indicated there were several observations listed, and if anyone would like
more information, he would be glad to provide it.
4
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Chair Fogg called for questions or discussion. Hearing none, he called for a motion.
Trustee Cors made a motion to accept the Academic Camps and Conferences Audit
and recommend it to the FGCU Board of Trustees. Trustee S. Smith seconded the
motion. There was no public comment or Committee discussion. The vote was 3-0 in
favor of the motion.
Administration of Florida Bright Futures Scholarship Program by Florida’s Public
Universities and Colleges Audit (TAB #5)
Mr. Foster said in the Bright Futures audit, which had been done on a state-wide basis,
there were no findings related to FGCU. The audit was conducted for 2016 and 2017.
Chair Fogg called for questions and there were none. He called for a motion.
Trustee Cors made a motion to accept the Administration of Florida Bright Futures
Scholarship Program by Florida’s Public Universities and Colleges Audit. Trustee S.
Smith seconded the motion. There was no public comment or Committee discussion.
The vote was 3-0 in favor of the motion.

Item 4: Information Items (See Tabs #6-7)
Chair Fogg stated these were two important items of information: (1) Revised Audit and
Compliance Committee Charter; and (2) Revised Charter for the Compliance Office,
now headed by Director of Equity, Ethics and Compliance, and Title IX Coordinator
Precious Gunter. He said he had spent considerable time reviewing the drafts with
staff, and that most of the changes related to Ms. Gunter’s new role. He said the FGCU
Board of Trustees Audit and Compliance Committee Charter also had been brought up
to date and reflected actual practices and was now fully compliant with the Board of
Governors regulations. He said the Committee would be discussing and calling for
approval of these Charters at the Committee’s next meeting.
Chair Fogg then directed the Committee to Tab #6, page 3, which gave the role of the
Committee and the Chair relating to the financial statements, internal controls, etc.,
pertaining to the Direct Support Organizations (DSOs). He said it correctly noted that
the Committee also was responsible for oversight of the financial statements of the
DSOs. He explained his understanding of what that meant was that the Committee
could rely, in general, on the work of Mr. Foster in participating in the DSOs’ meetings
and reviews with their auditors. He noted this meant the Committee did not necessarily
need to do that itself unless there was an issue which would call the Committee to do
so.
President Martin replied he concurred, and this was a functional and efficient way to do
this while remaining involved.
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Item 5: Old Business
There was no old business for discussion.

Item 6: New Business
There was no new business for discussion.

Item 7: Closing Remarks and Adjournment
Chair Fogg stated the items recommended today would be recommended for final
approval to the full Board. He said Vice President and Chief of Staff Susan Evans was
working on a schedule of dates for the upcoming meetings of the Audit and Compliance
Committee.
Chair Fogg adjourned the meeting at 8:19 a.m.

Minutes prepared by Transcription Experts, and reviewed by Tiffany Jackson, FGCU
Assistant Director of Board Operations.

Agenda Items:
A. https://www2.fgcu.edu/Trustees/AgendaFile/2018/09-112018/FGCUBOTMTG-AGENDAPACKET-ACC_09-11-18.pdf

Attachment:
A. Record of Votes
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Record of Votes
Audit and Compliance Committee
DATE: 9/11/2018
Consent Agenda
(Tab #1)
1- Cors
2- Smith

1
2
3
4

TRUSTEES
Trustee Darleen Cors
Trustee Leo Montgomery (excused absence)
Trustee Stephen Smith
Trustee Joseph Fogg

Administration of Florida
Bright Futures
2017-2018 Internal Audit 2018-2019 Internal Audit Academic Camps and Scholarship Program by
Annual Report
Work Plan
Conferences Audit
Florida’s Public
(Tab #2)
(Tab #3)
(Tab #4)
Universities and
1- Smith
1- Smith
1- Cors
Colleges Audit
2-Cors
2-Cors
2-Smith
(Tab #5)
1- Cors
2-Smith

Yes/No
Yes

Yes/No
Yes

Yes

Yes/No
Yes

Yes/No
Yes

Abstain
Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes
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ITEM: __2__

Florida Gulf Coast University Board of Trustees
Audit and Compliance Committee
December 3, 2018

SUBJECT:

International Travel: Outgoing Students and Faculty Audit

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION
Accept the International Travel: Outgoing Students and Faculty Audit Report
dated October 19, 2018 and recommend its acceptance by the FGCU Board of
Trustees.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION
This report presents a limited scope audit of international travel (outgoing
students and faculty) managed by Academic Affairs and Student Success &
Enrollment Management for programs offered during the Spring, Summer and
Fall 2017 semesters. The evaluated programs, from various offices, were being
conducted in general compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations,
University policies and procedures.
Upon approval by the Audit and Compliance Committee, a copy of this report will
be forwarded to the FGCU Board of Trustees for its consideration.

Supporting Documentation Included: International Travel: Outgoing Students
and Faculty Audit Report issued October 19, 2018
Prepared by: Director of Internal Audit William Foster
Legal Review by: Vice President and General Counsel Vee Leonard (October
23, 2018)
Submitted by: Director of Internal Audit William Foster
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ITEM: __3__

Florida Gulf Coast University Board of Trustees
Audit and Compliance Committee
December 3, 2018

SUBJECT: Florida Gulf Coast University Financing Corporation, Inc.
Independent Auditor's Report Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION
Accept the Florida Gulf Coast University Financing Corporation, Inc. Independent
Auditor's Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018, and recommend its
acceptance by the FGCU Board of Trustees.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Each direct support organization of a state university is required to conduct an
annual audit of its accounts and records by an independent certified public
accountant in accordance with Section 1004.28(5) Florida Statutes. FGCU Rule
6C-10-1.005(6), F.A.C. requires that annual audit reports related to FGCU direct
support organizations be submitted to the FGCU Board of Trustees.
The firm of Tuscan & Company, P.A. has completed the audit report of the FGCU
Financing Corporation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The
Corporation's Board of Directors approved the audit report at its October 22,
2018 meeting.

Supporting Documentation Included: (1) Summary Memo, and (2) FGCU
Financing Corporation Independent Auditor's Report Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2018
Prepared by: Director of Internal Audit William Foster
Legal Review by: N/A
Submitted by: Director of Internal Audit William Foster
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TO:
FROM:
SUBJECT:
DATE:

FGCU Board of Trustees Audit and Compliance Committee
William Foster, Director of Internal Audit
Annual Audit, Florida Gulf Coast University Financing Corporation
December 3, 2018

Below is a summary of the key points in the Financial Audit of the Florida Gulf Coast University Financing
Corporation.
Page 2 – Opinion – The auditors have determined the financial statements fairly present the financial
position of the Financing Corporation. This is known as a clean opinion.
Pages 4 through 9 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis – This is the section where Management
describes in reader friendly terms what occurred in the last fiscal year. This section points out major
transactions, and presents comparative figures from the prior year.
Page 10 – Statement of Net Position – Years ago, this statement was known as the Balance Sheet. At
year end, we had $222.7 million of total assets, $197.3 million total liabilities and deferred inflows, and
net position (residual equity) $25.4 million.
Page 11 – Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – This statement was formerly
known as an Income Statement. For the year, we had $18.6 million in operating revenue, $14.5 million
operating expenses, and $3.9 million non-operating expenses, arriving at a net increase in position of $0.2
million.
Page 12 – Statement of Cash Flows – This statement shows the effects to cash from the financial
transactions. The net effect is a $20,000 increase in cash and cash equivalents for the year.
Pages 13 through 23 - Notes to the Financial Statements – There is a significant amount of information
to explain the various line items in the financial statements. Compared to Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, these notes are not necessarily as reader friendly.
Pages 24 and 25 – Auditor’s Report on Internal Control and Compliance – This report on internal control
relates financial reporting and compliance with Government Auditing Standards. There were no
deficiencies in internal controls noted.
Pages 26 and 27 – Auditor’s Report to Management - There were no comments in the current or prior
years.
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY
FINANCING CORPORATION
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TOGETHER WITH REPORTS OF
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2018
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Affiliations
Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Private Companies Practice Section
Tax Division

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
Florida Gulf Coast University Financing Corporation
10501 FGCU Boulevard South
Fort Myers, Florida 33965-6565
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of Florida Gulf Coast University
Financing Corporation (the "Financing Corporation") (a Florida not-for-profit corporation), a
direct support organization and component unit of Florida Gulf Coast University, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Financing Corporation’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America. Those
Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the basic financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Financing Corporation's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
INTEGRITY ......... SERVICE ......... EXPERIENCE
12621 World Plaza Lane, Building 55 • Fort Myers, FL 33907 • Phone: (239) 333-2090 • Fax: (239) 333-2097
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Board of Directors
Florida Gulf Coast University Financing Corporation
Page 2
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Financing Corporation's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Florida Gulf Coast University Financing Corporation as of June 30,
2018, and the changes in its net position and its cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
required supplementary information - Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 4-9 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the required supplementary information – Management’s
Discussion and Analysis because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Financing Corporation’s basic financial statements. The Exhibit –
Management’s Response to the Independent Auditor’s Report to Management is not a required
part of the basic financial statements but is required by Government Auditing Standards. Such
information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
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Page 4 of 27

FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FINANCING CORPORATION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
Overview of the Financial Statements and Financial Analysis
This section of the Florida Gulf Coast University Financing Corporation (Financing Corporation) annual financial report presents a
discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the Financing Corporation during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, with
2016-17 fiscal year data presented for comparative purposes. The emphasis of discussions about these statements will be on current
year activities, resulting change and currently known facts. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the financial statements
and related notes. Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of this information rests with the Financing Corporation’s
management.
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements, prepared in accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local
Governments” and GASB Statement No. 35, “Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for Public
Colleges and Universities,” as amended by GASB Statements No. 37 and 38. The Financing Corporation is considered a Business
Type Activity (BTA) under the provision and reporting model of GASB Statements No. 34 and No. 35.
Financial Highlights
On November 29, 2017 the Financing Corporation issued the Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A (Housing
Project) (the “Series 2017A Bonds”) and the Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B (Parking Project) (the
“Series 2017B Bonds”).
The Series 2017A Bonds were issued in the amount of $47,500,000 plus original issue premium of $6,456,991. The proceeds from
the sale of the Series 2017A Bonds were used to (i) refund the outstanding Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2003
(Housing Project), and the Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2007A (Housing Project), and (ii) pay costs relating to the
issuance of the Series 2017A Bonds. The present value savings resulting from refunded debt service costs is $7.7 million.
The Series 2017B Bonds were issued in the amount of $7,850,000 plus original issue premium of $398,563. The proceeds from the
sale of the Series 2017B Bonds were used to (i) refund the outstanding Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2007C (Parking
Project), and (ii) pay costs relating to the issuance of the Series 2017B Bonds. The present value savings resulting from refunded
debt service costs is $0.8 million.
The Financing Corporation has no immediate plans to issue additional Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds to construct additional
student residence facilities, parking garages or other facilities.
The North Lake Village Improvement Project, which included several outdoor common areas along the North Lake Village waterfront
connected through a boardwalk, was substantially completed during the year ended June 30, 2018. As of June 30, 2018, the Financing
Corporation had invested $2 million in the North Lake Village Improvement Project and transferred the project to the University.
The Housing System
The Housing system is managed and operated by the University’s Office of Housing and Residence Life. The North Lake Village
Student Residence facilities (Phase I-VII) are comprised of apartment style buildings (two or four bedroom, single or double
occupancy). Each unit contains full kitchen facilities including dishwasher, microwave oven, regular oven, full size refrigerator, and
living room, lavatory and bath facilities. The South Village Student Residence (Phase VIII-X and XII) are facilities located in the
southern portion of the University’s student housing area. These facilities are comprised of suite style units, each containing lavatories,
bath facilities, entry, and bedroom areas. The overall buildings contain kitchen and laundry facilities. The West Lake Village Student
Residence (Phase XI) facilities located approximately one mile northwest of Florida Gulf Coast University include development of
multiple future phases of student housing. These facilities are comprised of six three story apartment style buildings (three or four
bedrooms single occupancy), a single story combination administrative office and clubhouse building with a swimming pool. Each unit
contains full kitchen facilities including dishwasher, microwave oven, regular oven, full size refrigerator and living room, private lavatory
and bath facilities.
The housing system consists of the following facilities:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

A 256-bed apartment style student residential facility (Phase I – opened 1998)
A 288-bed apartment style student residential facility (Phase II – opened 2000)
A 288-bed apartment style student residential facility (Phase III – opened 2001)
A 288-bed apartment style student residential facility (Phase IV – opened 2002)
A 288-bed apartment style student residential facility (Phase V – opened 2003)
A 288-bed apartment style student residential facility (Phase VI – opened 2004)
A 288-bed apartment style student residential facility (Phase VII – opened 2005)
A 407-bed suite style student residential facility (Phase VIII – opened Fall 2008)
A 407-bed suite style student residential facility (Phase IX – opened Fall 2009)
A 417-bed suite style student residential facility (Phase X – opened Fall 2011)
A 504-bed apartment style student residential facility (Phase XI – opened Fall 2010)
A 534-bed suite style student residential facility (Phase XII – opened Fall 2012)
A 535-bed suite style student residential facility (Phase XIII – opened Fall 2014)
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In addition to the internal apartment arrangements, the overall Housing system has a volleyball court, three swimming pools and
access to canoeing, kayaking, sailing, fishing, and water skiing on the adjacent 60 acre lake. Additional future recreational and athletic
facilities will be located in the South Village Student Residence.
The Parking System
The Parking facilities are managed and operated by the University’s Office of Parking Services. The parking system consists of
parking facilities comprising of parking lots 1-3 and 5-7 in the University’s core campus, five multi-level, covered parking garages,
athletic complex parking and student residence parking. The parking system currently provides facilities that will accommodate 8,849
vehicles. Included in the total number of parking spaces is student residence parking with 2,443 spaces, the athletic complex parking
with 430 parking spaces and five parking garages (I – IV and South Village) with a total of 4,313 spaces. Currently, the parking
facilities are comprised entirely of surface parking with the exception of the five covered parking garages. University staff must
purchase a regular annual parking decal or optionally purchase a reserved annual parking space decal before the beginning of the
fall term in August of each year. These decals can be purchased for cash or payroll deduction over either one, five, or ten bi-weekly
pay periods. Students are charged a parking fee and a transportation fee based upon number of enrolled credit hours each term.
The parking system consists of the follow facilities:

Parking Lot 1 (main campus)
Parking Lot 2 (main campus)
Parking Lot 3 (main campus)
Parking Lot 5 (main campus)
Student Residence Phase I
Student Residence Phase II
Parking Lot 7 (main campus)
Student Residence Phase III
Student Residence Phase IV
Athletic Complex Parking
Student Residence Phase V
Parking Lot 6 (main campus)
Student Residence Phase VI
Student Residence Phase VII
Parking Garage Phase I
Student Residence Phase VIII
Parking Garage Phase II
Parking Garage Phase III
Parking Residence Phase XI
Parking Garage B - South Village
Parking Garage Phase IV

Year
Opened
1997
1997
1997
1997
1998
2000
2001
2001
2002
2002
2003
2003
2004
2005
2007
2008
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

Capacity
240
305
115
203
300
238
729
217
205
430
295
71
162
296
678
280
900
785
450
1,200
750

Total
Parking
Spaces
240
545
660
863
1,163
1,401
2,130
2,347
2,552
2,982
3,277
3,348
3,510
3,806
4,484
4,764
5,664
6,449
6,899
8,099
8,849

Overview of Financial Statements
Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 35, the Financing Corporation’s financial report includes three basic financial statements: the
Statement of Net Position; the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position; and the Statement of Cash Flows.
Statement of Net Position
The Statement of Net Position reflects the assets (current and noncurrent) and liabilities (current and noncurrent) of the Financing
Corporation, using the accrual basis of accounting, and presents the financial position of the Financing Corporation at a specified
time. The difference between total assets and total liabilities, or net position, is one indicator of the Financing Corporation’s current
financial condition. The changes in net position that occur over time indicate improvement or deterioration in the Financing
Corporation’s financial condition.
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Condensed Summary of Net Position
As of June 30, 2018
(in thousands of dollars)
2018
Assets:
Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

$

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows
Net Position:
Investment Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

Increase
(Decrease)

2017

23,006
199,713
222,719

$

20,705
207,657
228,362

$

Change

2,301
(7,944)
(5,643)

11.1%
-3.8%
-2.5%

-5.6%
-3.0%
-3.1%

9,488
187,360
196,848

10,049
193,132
203,181

(561)
(5,772)
(6,333)

454

-

454

100.0%

12,163
13,254
25,417

1,656
12,132
11,393
25,181

(1,656)
31
1,861
236

-100.0%
0.3%
16.3%
0.9%

$

$

The decrease in total assets of the Financing Corporation is $5.6 million, or 2.5%. The decrease is mainly the result of the amortization
of Investment in Direct Financing Lease from the University in the amount of $6.1 million, and a decrease in construction in progress
of $1.8 million as a result of the completion and transfer of the North Lake Village Project. These amounts were offset with an increase
in investments of $2.3 million.
The decrease in total liabilities of $6.3 million, or 3.1%, is primarily the result of bond and loan principal payments and amortization of
bond premiums and discounts in the amount of $5.9 million, a decrease in interest expense payables of $0.1 million, a decrease in
housing improvement project payables of $0.1 million, and a decrease in construction payables of $0.2 million.
Deferred inflows of $0.5 million is the gain on the bond refunding, and will be amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
related debt.
The Financing Corporation’s financial position, as a whole, increased during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 in the amount of
$0.2 million, or 1.0%, percent, over the net position balance at June 30, 2017. The Financing Corporation continues to experience
sound financial condition and health.
Restricted net position includes $8.2 million in the required debt service reserve accounts for Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds,
Series 2010A, 2010B, 2011A, 2013A, and Loan Agreements 2005A and 2005B, and $4.0 million restricted by the covenants of the
Series 2008A and 2009A bond reimbursement agreements.
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Changes in total net position as presented on the Statement of Net Position are based on the activity presented in the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. The purpose of the Statement is to show the operating and non-operating
revenues received by the Financing Corporation, the operating and non-operating expenses paid by the Financing Corporation and
any other revenues, expenses, gains and losses received or spent by the Financing Corporation. Revenues and expenses are
recognized when earned or incurred, regardless of when cash is received or paid.
Operating revenues represent rental income received from the University, and operating expenses primarily represent expenses paid
for debt service on outstanding bonds payable. In contrast, non-operating revenues and expenditures are for goods and services not
provided by the Financing Corporation. An example of non-operating revenues would be investment income and transfers in/from the
University.
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Condensed Summary of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Position
Year Ended June 30, 2018
(in thousands of dollars)
Increase
2018
Operating Revenues
Less: Operating Expenses
Less: Net Non-Operating Expenses

$

Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year
Net Position, End of Year

$

2017

18,622
14,458
3,928

$

18,253
14,278
9,749

(Decrease)
$

Change

369
180
(5,821)

2.0%
-1.3%
59.7%

236

(5,774)

6,010

104.1%

25,181

30,955

(5,774)

-18.7%

236

0.9%

25,417

$

25,181

$

Total operating revenues for the 2017-18 fiscal year increased $0.4 million over the 2016-17 fiscal year. This increase was mainly due
to timing changes in revenue recognition of student residence rental income.
Total operating expenses for the 2017-18 fiscal year increased slightly from the 2016-17 fiscal year. Operating expenses of $14.4
million were comprised of $7.9 million, or 55.0% percent, for debt service (interest expense) and bond premium and discount
amortizations; $6.3 million, or 43.8% percent, for direct financing lease amortization, and $0.2 million or 1.2%, for administrative
expenses.
Net Non-Operating Expenses decreased $5.8 million from the 2016-17 fiscal year. Of this decrease, $3.8 million occurred in capital
transfers to the University, which is the difference between the Solar Field Facility transfer in the 2016-17 fiscal year, and the North
Lake Village Transfer in the 2017-18 fiscal year. An additional decrease of $2.34 million occurred in Housing and Parking Capital
Improvement expenses as major projects undertaken in previous fiscal years were completed. The decreases were offset with
$0.54 million of non-recurring costs of issuing the Capital Improvement Refunding Bonds Series 2017A and Series 2017B.
Statement of Cash Flows
The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about the Financing Corporation’s financial results by reporting the major sources
and uses of cash and cash equivalents. This Statement will assist in evaluating the Financing Corporation’s ability to generate net
cash flows, its ability to meet its financial obligations as they come due, and its need for external financing.
Cash flows from operating activities show the net cash provided by the operating activities of the Financing Corporation. The major
sources of funds included in operating activities are student residences and parking facilities net rental income received from the
University less interest paid on debt.
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities show the net cash provided to and from the University.
The largest outflow of cash in the capital and related financing activities represent annual debt service principal bond payments on
the outstanding bonds and loans payable. Cash flows from the capital financing activities include all plant funds and related long-term
debt activities.
Cash flows from the investing activities show the net source and use of cash as related to purchasing or selling investments and
earning income on those investments.
Debt Administration
Investment in Direct Financing Lease
Investment in the direct financing lease in the amount of $187.6 million recognizes a capital lease between the Financing Corporation
and the University for land leased from the University. The University leased back the land from the Financing Corporation to manage
and operate Student Residences and Parking Garages. The condition of student residences and parking facilities is good with the
oldest residential building placed in service in 1998 and first parking garage placed in service in 2007.
Construction in Progress
During fiscal year 2017-18, the Financing Corporation substantially completed construction on North Lake Village that included
enhancing several outdoor common areas along the North Lake Village waterfront and connecting them through a boardwalk. As of
June 30, 2018 the project had been transferred to the University and is no longer a part of Construction in Progress.
During fiscal year 2017-18, the Financing Corporation started the process of constructing a Student and Community Counseling
Center. At June 30, 2018, the Financing Corporation had $7,796 as construction in progress for this project.
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Factors Impacting Future Periods
The Financing Corporation is not aware of any currently known facts, decisions, or conditions expected to have a significant effect on
the financial position of operations during the year ending June 30, 2019. The Financing Corporation’s financial outlook for the future
continues to be positive. The level of variable rate (13.0%) versus fixed rate (87.0%) debt is one of the key factors influencing the
Financing Corporation activities. Fixed and variable interest rates have been historically low and are expected to remain relatively
stable in the short term.
Another significant factor affecting the Financing Corporation’s economic position relates to its ability to recruit and retain high quality
students to live in the student residence facilities. Outlined below are the student residence facilities occupancy statistics.
Enrolled Fiscal
Year
2008-09
2009-10
2010-11
2011-12
2012-13
2013-14
2014-15
2015-16
2016-17
2017-18

Enrolled
Students
10,238
11,105
12,038
12,655
13,442
14,074
14,463
14,824
14,821
14,943

Housing
Capacity
2,391
2,798
2,798
3,719
4,253
4,253
4,788
4,788
4,788
4,788

Living in
Housing*
2,412
2,812
2,827
3,720
4,245
4,282
4,798
4,818
4,734
4,672

Occupancy
100.88%
100.50%
101.04%
100.03%
99.81%
100.68%
100.21%
100.63%
98.87%
97.58%

* Includes Staff and Other

The following table lists the residences available to students and the related historical and projected average rental rates on a per
student, per semester, basis for each academic year. Rental rates are set each academic year in accordance with guidelines
established by the Financing Corporation Board of Directors and the University Board of Trustees.

FY14
FY15
FY16
FY17
FY18
FY19
$ 2,890 $ 2,890 $ 2,890 $ 2,890 $ 2,890 $ 2,890
3,169
3,169
3,169
3,169
3,169
3,169
2,741
2,741
2,741
2,741
2,741
2,741

North Lake Village
South Lake Village
West Lake Village
West Lake Village - 12 month agreement

7,200

7,200

7,200

7,200

7,200

7,200

Another significant factor in the Financing Corporation’s economic position relates to its ability to provide adequate parking facilities.
The University estimates that demand for parking will increase by 1% yearly. Demand for visitor parking is also expected to increase
by 1% per year. Limited future surface parking will be available as the University’s core campus matures. Outlined below is the
parking decal statistics for the Parking Facilities.

Fiscal Year
2008-09
2009-10
2010-11
2011-12
2012-13
2013-14
2014-15
2015-16
2016-17
2017-18

Enrolled
Students
10,238
11,105
12,038
12,655
13,442
14,074
14,463
14,824
14,821
14,943

Faculty &
Staff
953
988
1,028
1,089
1,144
1,180
1,256
1,294
1,334
1,372

34

Parking
Capacity
5,863
6,449
6,449
8,849
8,849
8,849
8,849
8,849
8,849
8,849

Decals
Sold
930
1,003
1,080
1,335
1,299
1,438
1,495
1,490
1,535
1,564
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The following table lists the types of parking charges for parking facilities available to students and staff and the related historical rates
on a per student/staff, per term/year, basis for each fiscal year.

Fall Term
Annual Decal Fee
Term Decal Fee
Reserved Annual Decal Fee
Parking Decal Hourly Fee*
Transportation Hourly Fee**

2010
$ 107
$ 43
$ 482
$ 2.75
$ 5.25

2011
$ 115
$ 58
$ 525
$ 2.75
$ 5.75

2012
$ 115
$ 58
$ 525
$ 2.75
$ 5.75

2013
$ 118
$ 60
$ 535
$ 2.75
$ 5.95

2014
$ 118
$ 60
$ 535
$ 2.75
$ 5.95

2015
$ 118
$ 60
$ 535
$ 2.75
$ 5.95

2016
$ 118
$ 60
$ 535
$ 2.75
$ 5.95

2017
$ 118
$ 60
$ 535
$ 2.75
$ 5.95

2018
$ 118
$ 60
$ 535
$ 2.75
$ 5.95

2019
$ 118
$ 60
$ 535
$ 2.75
$ 5.95

* Parking Decal Hourly Fee paid by students on a per credit hour basis and includes sales tax.
** Transportation Decal Hourly Fee paid by students on a per credit hour basis.

Commitments and Contingencies
The Financing Corporation has outstanding contracts, commitments or contingencies for the North Lake Village Improvement Project
with a current remaining construction commitment in the amount of $5,774 as of June 30, 2018.
The Financing Corporation Board of Directors approved funding for up to $8 million to construct a Student and Community Counseling
Center to be repaid by the University. At June 30, 2018, $7,796 had been expended towards the Counseling Center.
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Florida Gulf Coast University Financing Corporation
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2018

Amounts
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investment with State Treasury
Interest Receivable (includes $11,590 restricted)

$

Total Current Assets:

50,000
22,909,484
46,011
23,005,495

Noncurrent Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investment in Direct Financing Lease
Investment with State Treasury
Investment with State Treasury - Debt Reserve
Construction in Progress

390,666
187,554,866
4,000,000
7,760,112
7,796

Total Noncurrent Assets:

199,713,440

Total Assets

222,718,935

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Interest Payable
Due to University
Construction Contract Payables
Loans Payable - Current Portion
Bonds Payable - Current Portion

3,187,055
408,122
7,796
400,000
5,485,000

Total Current Liabilities:

9,487,973

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Loans Payable
Bonds Payable, Net

9,600,000
177,760,172

Total Noncurrent Liabilities:

187,360,172

Total Liabilities

196,848,145

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Gain on Debt Refunding, Net

454,114

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

12,162,368
13,254,308

Total Net Position

$

36

25,416,676
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Florida Gulf Coast University Financing Corporation
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Amounts
REVENUES
Operating Revenues:
Net Rental Income Received from University

$

Total Operating Revenues

18,622,396
18,622,396

EXPENSES
Operating Expenses:
Debt Service
Financing Lease Amortization
Bond Premium Amortization, Net
Contractual Expenses
Insurance
Other Expenses

8,189,921
6,331,855
(247,410)
21,250
161,454
602

Total Operating Expenses

14,457,672

Operating Income

4,164,724

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Income
Bond Refunding Cost of Issuance
Transfer Out to University

509,440
(475,093)
(3,963,024)

Total Net Non-Operating Expenses

(3,928,677)

Increase in Net Position

236,047

Net Position, June 30, 2017

25,180,629

Net Position, June 30, 2018

$

37

25,416,676
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Florida Gulf Coast University Financing Corporation
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
Amounts
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Rental Income - Received from University

$

Interest Paid on Debt

18,622,396
(8,328,620)

Payments to Suppliers of Goods and Services

(183,306)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

10,110,470

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer out to University

(2,070,332)

Net Cash Used in Non-Capital Financing Activities

(2,070,332)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Capital Debt and Bond Refunding

62,659,667

Bond/Loan Principal Payments

(68,058,550)

Bond Refunding Cost of Issuance

(475,093)

Capital Expenditures

(345,980)

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities

(6,219,956)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash from (used by) Investments, Net

(2,305,292)

Interest Earned

505,119

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

(1,800,173)

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

20,009

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

420,657

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

$

440,666

$

4,164,724

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Amortization of Bond Premium/Discount, Net

(247,410)

Amortization of Direct Financing Lease

6,331,855

Interest Payable

(138,699)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

38

$

10,110,470
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FINANCING CORPORATION
A COMPONENT UNIT OF FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
NATURE OF ORGANIZATION
On April 10, 2003, the Florida Gulf Coast University Board of Trustees approved the creation of the Florida Gulf Coast
University Financing Corporation (Financing Corporation) as a direct support organization (Auditor General Rule 10.700)
and component unit of the Florida Gulf Coast University (University). The Financing Corporation was incorporated on April
11, 2003, as a Florida not-for-profit corporation under the provisions of Chapter 617, as a direct support organization of the
University as defined by Florida Statutes Chapter 1004.28. Operations of the Financing Corporation began July 1, 2003.
The Financing Corporation was established to receive, hold, invest, and administer property and to make expenditures to
or for the exclusive benefit of (i) the University or (ii) a research and development park or research and development
authority affiliated with the University and organized under Part V of Chapter 159 of Florida Statutes. Operating revenues
and expenses generally include only fiscal transactions directly related to these activities. Included in non-operating
revenues is investment income. The Financing Corporation also has the authority to issue bonds and other forms of
indebtedness upon the approval of the University’s Board of Trustees, as well as to enter into agreements to finance, design,
construct, lease, purchase, and/or operate facilities necessary and desirable to serve the needs of the University.
Specifically, the operations of the Financing Corporation consist of contracting for the design and construction of student
residential housing, parking facilities, and certain other projects as well as the issuance of bonded debt to finance such
construction. As such, the Financing Corporation supervises and accounts for the respective construction. Once the
construction is completed, the Financing Corporation transfers the completed building and/or facility to the University to
operate in return for a direct financing lease (Master Operating Lease). Accordingly, the University operates and leases the
respective facility from the Financing Corporation in an amount equal to the net rental proceeds (net operating revenues of
the defined facilities). The net operating revenues paid to the Financing Corporation shall be not less than the annual debt
service and related costs as defined by the Master Operating Lease. These net rental proceeds are then used to fund the
outstanding debt.
The governing body of the Financing Corporation is its Board of Directors (Board). The Board is composed of at least five
(5) but no more than seven (7) Directors. The Financing Corporation is managed, supervised and controlled by its Board,
subject to applicable law and the powers and duties reserved to the Florida Gulf Coast University Board of Trustees and
the President of Florida Gulf Coast University.
REPORTING ENTITY
Based on the application of the criteria described in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section 2100 and 2600 for determining component units, the
Financing Corporation is included within the financial statements of the University as a blended component unit entity for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. After an annual audit of the Financing Corporation’s financial statements is conducted
by an independent certified public accountant and accepted by the Board, the annual report is submitted to the State of
Florida Auditor General and the Florida Gulf Coast University Board of Trustees for review. The financial statements for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, are blended in the financial statements of the University. Through the application of
these standards, no entities were required to be or are reported as component units of the Financing Corporation.
BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The Financing Corporation’s accounting policies conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America applicable to public colleges and universities as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB”). Accordingly, the Financing Corporation adheres to GASB Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements – and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments,” GASB Statement No. 35, “Basic Financial
Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for Public Colleges and Universities,” GASB Statement No.
37, “Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments:
Omnibus – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 21 and No. 34,” and GASB Statement No. 38, “Certain Financial
Statement Note Disclosures.”
GASB Statements No. 34 and No. 35 established standards for external financial reporting which includes a Statement of
Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows using the
direct method. GASB Statements No. 34 and 35 also include a requirement that management provide a discussion and
analysis of the basic financial statements and it requires the classification of net position into three components – net
investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows:
•

Net investment in capital assets, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any debt that is attributable to those assets. At June 30, 2017, the Financing Corporation
had net investments in capital assets in the amount of $1,656,133 for the North Lake Village (NLV) Improvement
Project. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 the Financing Corporation completed and transferred the
NLV Improvement Project in the amount of $2,002,113 to the University to maintain and operate. At June 30,
2018 the Financing Corporation had no net investments in capital assets.
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•

Restricted – consists of assets that have constraints placed upon their uses through external constraints imposed
by donors, creditors (such as through debt covenants), or through laws, regulations or constraints imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation, reduced by any liabilities to be paid from these assets.
As of June 30, 2018, restricted net position is comprised of cash reserves that are required by applicable debt
covenants.

•

Unrestricted – consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital
assets.”

The Financing Corporation also adheres to the recommendations of the National Association of College and University
Business Officers (NACUBO). NACUBO’s recommendations are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and the GASB. The Financing
Corporation reporting model under GASB Statement No. 35 is considered a special-purpose government entity engaged
only in business-type activities (BTA).
GASB Statements No. 34 and 35 provide that a special-purpose government entity engaged only in business-type activities
is to present entity-wide reporting including the following:
•
•

•

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
Proprietary (enterprise) fund financial statements:
1) Statement of Net Position
2) Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
3) Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to the financial statements

No budget versus actual statement is presented, as the Financing Corporation is not required to adopt a legal budget.
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
Basis of accounting refers to when the effect of transactions or events should be recognized for financial reporting purposes.
It relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. The Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position of the Financing Corporation are
presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take
place.
The Statement of Net Position is presented in a classified format to distinguish between current and long-term assets and
liabilities. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position is presented by major sources. The
Statement of Cash Flows is presented using the direct method and complies with GASB Statement No. 9 “Reporting Cash
Flow for Proprietary and Non-expendable Trust Funds.” The Financing Corporation follows GASB Statement No. 62, which
incorporates FASB Statements and interpretations issued unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB
pronouncements.
RESTRICTED ASSETS
Restricted assets are cash reserves required by the applicable debt covenants, and unspent bond proceeds. When both
restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Financing Corporation’s policy to apply first to the
restricted resources followed by the use of the unrestricted resources.
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS
The Financing Corporation invests its cash, cash equivalents, and investments in qualified public deposits and/or the Special
Purpose Investment Account (SPIA) per Florida Statute 215.47. Cash and cash equivalents include operating cash account
balances as well as unspent bond proceeds. Investments are reported at book value, which is fair value. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses are reflected in the Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. Cash and
cash equivalents that are externally restricted to make debt service payments, maintain sinking or reserve funds, or to
purchase or construct capital or other restricted assets, are classified as restricted.
DIRECT FINANCING LEASE
Direct Financing Lease (Master Operating Lease) is recorded by the Financing Corporation at the capitalized amount of the
previously completed Student Residences and Parking Facilities, which approximates the net present value of the Master
Operating Lease.
CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets are capitalized at cost or at fair market value at the time of contribution. The Financing Corporation has a
capitalization threshold of $5,000 for all movable equipment items and a $100,000 threshold for building renovations and
improvements. Depreciation is computed utilizing the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective
assets ranging from five (5) to fifty (50) years. Interest cost incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of
capital assets is capitalized as a component of the cost of those assets. All capital assets are intended to be transferred to
the University when placed in service and therefore, not depreciated.

40

FGCU Board of Trustees Audit and Compliance Committee - December 3, 2018

Page 15 of 27

BOND PREMIUMS AND DISCOUNTS
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight line method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. The Financing Corporation’s policy is to begin
amortization in the first full year of the bond’s term.
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
The unrestricted net position balance includes the effect of recognizing a deferred inflow of resources resulting from the
gain on refunding of debt of $468,550 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The balance has been recognized as an
expense beginning in fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 when the debt was extinguished and will further increase unrestricted
net position over a 20 year repayment period of the new debt.
CASH FLOWS
The Financing Corporation considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months
or less to be cash equivalents, as well as its operating cash account balances and unspent bond proceeds. The Statement
of Cash Flows is presented using the direct method and is in compliance with GASB Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash Flow
for Proprietary and Non-expendable Trust Funds.
INCOME TAXES
The Financing Corporation is exempt from federal and state income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and is organized exclusively for scientific, educational, and charitable purposes. The Financing Corporation is not
classified as a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code but is a corporation described under
Section 509(a)(3).
The Internal Revenue Code provides for taxation of unrelated business income under certain circumstances. The Financing
Corporation reports no unrelated business taxable income; however, such status is subject to final determination upon
examination of the related tax returns by the appropriate taxing authorities. The informational returns (Form 990) for the
prior three (3) fiscal years are open and subject to possible examination.
The Financial Accounting Standards Board has issued guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and the
Financing Corporation has adopted this guidance. The Financing Corporation has evaluated its tax positions and any
estimates utilized in its tax returns, and concluded that it has taken no uncertain tax positons that require adjustments to
the financial statements to comply with the provisions of this guidance. Interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax
positons will be recognized in income tax expense, if required.
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT
Throughout the year, the Financing Corporation has cash balances on deposit with financial institutions in excess of FDIC
insurance limits of $250,000. Such amounts in excess of FDIC limits are not insured. Investments are fully collateralized
but not insured. Management does not believe the Financing Corporation is exposed to undue credit risk. The Financing
Corporation has incurred no losses due to exposure to credit risk.
USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent events have been evaluated through August 20, 2018, which is the date the financial statements were available
to be issued.
2.

CASH and CASH EQUIVALENTS
The amounts reported as cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted and restricted cash in demand accounts. Cash
in demand accounts is held in banks qualified in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 280, Florida Statutes as a public
depository. Deposits are fully collateralized by a mutual collateral pool as provided by Florida Statutes Chapter 280 but are
not insured in excess of the $250,000 FDIC limits. Cash and cash equivalents that are externally restricted to make debt
service payments, maintain sinking or reserve funds, and to purchase or construct capital or other restricted assets are
classified as restricted.
The Financing Corporation reported restricted cash equivalents totaling $390,666 at June 30, 2018. Of this balance $370,716
is held by the lender and owner of the 2005B Loan as a debt service reserve requirement. According to the First Amendment
to the Loan Agreement dated as of March 1, 2015 and the Amended and Restated Trust Indenture dated as of July 1, 2013,
the Financing Corporation deposited a contribution equal to the 2005B maximum debt service requirement in the amount of
$370,470. This amount including interest is required to be disclosed as Restricted Cash and Net Position. The remaining
balance of $19,950 is held by the trustee of the 2017A and 2017B Bonds and will be used against interest due on the next
semiannual payment.
At June 30, 2018, the total carrying amount of the Financing Corporation’s deposits were $440,666 and the bank balances
totaled $450,747. Of the bank balances, $330,025 was insured by Federal Depository Insurance with the remainder of
$120,722 collateralized under the Florida Public Deposits Program.
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3.

INVESTMENTS
As of June 30, 2018, the Financing Corporation had the following external investment pools:
Investment
State Treasury Pool Investments

Book Value
$34,669,596

The Financing Corporation reported investments at book value, which is fair value, totaling $34,669,596 at June 30, 2018,
in the State Treasury Special Purpose Investment Account (SPIA) investment pool, representing ownership of a share of
the pool, not the underlying securities. These investment pools operate under investment guidelines established in Section
215.47, Florida Statutes. The State Treasury has taken the position that participants in the pool should disclose information
related to interest risk, credit risk and fair value factor. The SPIA carried a credit rating of A+f by Standard and Poor’s and
had an effective duration of 3.00 years at June 30, 2018. SPIA is not exposed to foreign currency risk. The Pool’s unaudited
fair value factor is .9872 . The Financing Corporation relies on policies developed by the State Treasury for managing
interest rate or credit risk for this investment pool. Disclosures for the State Treasury investment pool are included in the
notes to the financial statements of the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. In accordance with GASB
Statement No. 40, the investments held by the Financing Corporation are not risk categorized as the investments are
managed through the State Treasury in accordance with the provisions of Section 17.61, Florida Statutes, and are not
evidenced by specific, identifiable investment securities.
Of the reported investment amount, $4,000,000 is restricted by the covenants of the Series 2008A and 2009A bond
reimbursement agreements (as well as the parity bond issues) as a cash liquidity requirement, as well as the Master Capital
Lease Operating Agreement. Also included in the reported investment amount are the following restricted debt reserve
account balances:
06/30/18
Bond Series/Loan
Balance
2005A
$
516,465
2010A
2,120,199
2010B
1,094,033
2011A
2,081,122
2013A
1,948,293
Total Debt Service Reserve Accounts $ 7,760,112

$22,909,484 of the reported total investment amount is unrestricted.
As of June 30, 2018, the Financing Corporation does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities
as a means of managing its exposure to fair market value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
4.

INVESTMENT IN DIRECT FINANCING LEASE
As a condition of the financing arrangement, the Financing Corporation entered into a Master Ground Lease Agreement with
the University. The University leases the respective project land on its campus to the Financing Corporation with a rental
fee of $1.00 per year. The property covered by the Master Ground Lease together with improvements (re: student residences
and parking facilities) thereon is leased back by the University to manage and operate through the Master Operating Lease
(Direct Financing Lease). The payments on the Master Operating Lease are equal to net operating revenues, as defined,
but not less than the annual debt service requirements of the related bond and loan debt. The Master Operating Lease shall
terminate on the date on which all bonds, loans, and obligations under any related financing documents are paid in full. The
Financing Corporation records these lease agreements as a receivable. The Financing Corporation amortizes the direct
financing lease by the amount of respective bonded debt, including associated premiums and discounts, and loan principal
paid over the term of the debt. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the investment in direct financing lease was amortized in
the amounts of $5,562,405 for student residences, and $769,450 for parking facilities.
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At June 30, 2018, the Financing Corporation’s Investment in Direct Financing Lease was $187,554,866 and consists of the
following completed student residences and parking facilities:
Fiscal
Year of Completion
1998
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2008
2010
2012
2011
2013
2014
2015

Student Residence
Phase I
Phase II
Phase III
Phase IV
Phase V
Phase VI
Phase VII
Phase VIII
Phase IX
Phase X
Phase XI
Phase XII
South Village Pool
Phase XIII

Amount
6,904,962
7,000,000
8,095,037
7,591,506
6,973,593
10,675,796
8,399,116
25,604,702
22,000,000
29,755,368
15,867,531
27,357,283
1,824,433
27,798,729
205,848,056
(38,372,569)
$ 167,475,487

$

Less: Direct Financing Lease Amortization
Total Student Residence
Fiscal
Year of Completion
2007
2008
2010

Parking Facilities
Phase I
Phase II
Phase III

5.

$

Amount
7,008,293
10,186,821
8,000,000
25,195,114
(5,115,735)
20,079,379

Less: Direct Financing Lease Amortization
Total Parking Facilities

$

Total Investment in Direct Financing Lease, Net

$ 187,554,866

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
During the year-ended June 30, 2016, the Financing Corporation started construction and committed a cash contribution in
the amount of $2,700,000 toward a new 8,000 square foot dining facility in the center of North Lake Village including
enhancing several outdoor common areas along the North Lake Village waterfront and connecting them together through a
boardwalk. At June 30, 2018, the North Lake Village improvement project was substantially completed and transferred to
the University to maintain and operate in the amount of $2,002,113.
During the year-ended June 30, 2018, the Financing Corporation committed to a loan to the University in an amount up to
$8 million to construct a Student and Community Counseling Center. At June 30, 2018 the Counseling Center remains under
construction. The following is a summary of the Financing Corporation’s construction in progress activity for the year-ended
June 30, 2018.

Beginning Balance
Construction in Progress:
North Lake Village
Counseling Center
Total

Adjustments/
Increase

Transfer To
University

Ending Balance

$

1,847,476
-

$

154,637
7,796

$

(2,002,113)
-

$

7,796

$

1,847,476

$

162,433

$

(2,002,113)

$

7,796
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6.

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Bonds and Loans payable activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Beginning
Balance
Bonds Payable:
Series 2003
Series 2007A
Series 2007C
Series 2008A
Series 2009A
Series 2010A
Series 2010B
Series 2011A
Series 2013A
Series 2017A
Series 2017B

$

Loan Payable:
2005A Loan
2005B Loan
Total

$

6,000,000
4,500,000
198,145,000

Add:
Bond Discounts and
Premium
Total

35,240,000
20,200,000
8,060,000
18,225,000
6,720,000
28,065,000
14,895,000
27,610,000
28,630,000
-

Increases

199,147,029

47,500,000
7,850,000

$

55,350,000

1,002,029
$

Decreases

62,205,554

$

(300,000)
(200,000)
(67,590,000)

6,855,554
$

(35,240,000)
(20,200,000)
(8,060,000)
(565,000)
(210,000)
(725,000)
(390,000)
(645,000)
(705,000)
(350,000)

Ending Balance

(68,107,411)

$

5,700,000
4,300,000
185,905,000

(517,411)
$

17,660,000
6,510,000
27,340,000
14,505,000
26,965,000
27,925,000
47,500,000
7,500,000

Amounts Due
Within One Year

200,000
200,000
5,885,000

7,340,172
$

193,245,172

585,000
215,000
750,000
405,000
670,000
725,000
1,875,000
260,000

$

5,885,000

Loans Payable
On July 1, 2013, the Financing Corporation entered into a Loan Agreement dated July 1, 2013 (2005A) in the amount of
$6,800,000 and a Loan Agreement dated July 1, 2013 (2005B) in the amount of $5,100,000, collectively hereafter referred
to as the Loan, authorizing the purchase and refunding of Capital Revenue Bonds 2005A (Housing Phase VII) and Capital
Revenue Bonds 2005B (Parking Phase I) which resulted in defeasance of the variable rate capital revenue bond debt and
the securing of a fixed rate Loan as described in the Loan agreement and the Amended and Restated Trust Indenture dated
as of July 1, 2013. The Loan proceeds were delivered to the Trustee and applied to reimburse the credit facility (Letter of
Credit) previously securing the 2005 Bonds on the mandatory delivery date representing the par principal amounts.
The original proceeds derived from the sale of the Series 2005A Revenue Bonds were used to finance the construction and
equipping of a new 288 bed apartment style student residence facility (North Lake Village Student Residence Complex Phase VII) and the proceeds derived from the sale of the Series 2005B Revenue Bonds were used to finance the
construction and equipping of a 500 space parking garage (Parking Facilities Phase I).
The proceeds from the fixed tax-exempt Loans were used to refund the outstanding principal debt of Capital Revenue Bonds
2005A (Housing Phase VII) in the par amount of $6,800,000 and Capital Revenue Bonds 2005B (Parking Phase I) in the
par amount of $5,100,000 secured under the Amended and Restated Trust Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2013, between
the Financing Corporation and the Trustee on a parity basis with all outstanding Financing Corporation Housing and Parking
Systems Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds. The Loan payments are secured by a pledge of Net Housing and Parking
Systems revenues, all pursuant to the Ninth Amended and Restated Master Capital Projects Operating Lease between the
Financing Corporation and the University, dated May 1, 2013. The maturity of the Loan Agreement will not exceed the
maturity of the original issue Capital Revenue Bonds 2005A (Housing Phase VII) and Capital Revenue Bonds 2005B
(Parking Phase I).
According to the Loan agreement and the Amended and Restated Trust Indenture dated as of July 1, 2013, the Financing
Corporation deposited on July 1, 2013 with the Trustee a contribution equal to the amount of the 2005A Debt Service
Reserve requirement in the amount of $513,050 into the 2005A Debt Service Reserve Account within the sinking capital
fund. The maturity dates or payment principal schedules were not modified and there was no economic gain or loss of the
transaction. The Trustee invests the funds held in the Debt Reserve Sinking Account and applies any accrued investment
earnings against the payment of principal and interest. These funds are held by the Trustee and included in Restricted Net
Position.
On March 1, 2015, the Financing Corporation entered into the First Amendment to the Loan agreement requiring a 2005B
debt service reserve requirement in the amount of $370,470 to be held by the Lender as long as they are the owner of the
bonds. The amounts in the 2005B Debt Reserve Fund with the Lender are available exclusively for payment of the Loan.
The reserve funds are held by the Lender and included in Restricted Net Position.
Notwithstanding the original maturity date February 1, 2035, of the Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2005A and
Capital Improvement Bonds Series 2005B, the bank has the right to exercise put dates initially in fifteen years, July 1, 2028,
and in its sole discretion extend the term through the original maturity date of February 1, 2035. The Financing Corporation
may prepay the Loan in whole or part anytime however would be required to pay the bank an additional prepayment fee or
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premium as determined in the Amended and Restated Trust Indenture dated as of July 1, 2013. The intent of the Financing
Corporation is to retire the Loan at the end of the fifteen year period without additional prepayment or premium fees.
Interest payable is based upon a fixed rate of 3.17% paid semi-annually with principal payable in varying amounts annually
on February 1, 2014 through 2035. On February 1, 2018, a combined principal loan payment in the amount of $500,000
was paid leaving the outstanding Capital Improvement Revenue Loan Series 2005A in the amount of $5,700,000 and Capital
Improvement Revenue Loan Series 2005B in the amount of $4,300,000 at June 30, 2018. The Loans are collateralized by
the net rental revenues of the student residences system and parking system.
Bonds Payable
(1) Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2003
On December 10, 2003, the Financing Corporation issued Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 in the par
amount of $47,500,000. The proceeds derived from the sale of the Revenue Bonds were used to finance the acquisition,
construction and equipping of a new 288 bed apartment style student residence facility (North Lake Student Residence
Complex - Phase VI) on the campus of the University and the redemption of the outstanding principal amount of $21,500,000
of the $22,000,000 Certificates of Participation, Series 2000, $8,000,000 of the original $8,000,000 Certificates of
Participation, Series 2002, and $9,000,000 of the original $9,000,000 Certificates of Participation, Series 2002A each
previously issued by the Florida Gulf Coast Foundation for the purpose of constructing Student Residence Phases I-V (North
Lake Student Residence Complex). No gain or loss on redemption was realized or recorded by the Financing Corporation.
On August 1, 2005, and August 1, 2006, annual bond principal payments in the amount of $900,000 were paid leaving the
outstanding Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2003 in the amount of $45,700,000 at June 30, 2007.
On August 1, 2007, the Financing Corporation converted and reissued the Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series
2003 from variable rate to fixed rate bonds in the amount of $45,700,000. A principal bond payment in the amount of
$360,000 was made at this time leaving an outstanding balance in the amount of $45,340,000. The bonds were issued at
par with additional contributions made by the Financing Corporation in the amount of $900,090 to fund closing costs and
the $360,000 principal payment. Interest is payable based upon fixed rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.00% and is paid semiannually with principal payable in varying amounts paid annually on August 1, 2008 through 2034. At the time of issuance,
insurance premiums were paid in the amount of $341,000 representing the charge for a transfer of credit risk on the Series
2003 bonds and issuance of a Bond Insurance Policy. Net assets include $1,000,000 which was required to be held
(restricted) as a condition of the outstanding Capital Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 and is now associated with the Capital
Improvement Bonds, Series 2008A. The 2003 bonds are collateralized by the net rental revenues of the student residences
system and the parking system.
On July 1, 2014, the Financing Corporation Board of Director’s internally restricted cash to be held as a reserve in an amount
equivalent to the maximum annual debt service of $2,984,094 to provide additional security and cash liquidity for the Series
2003 bonds. Internally restricted funds are invested with the State Treasury and included in Unrestricted Net Position.
On August 1, 2017, a principal bond payment in the amount of $1,370,000 was paid leaving the outstanding Capital
Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2003 in the amount of $33,870,000.
On November 29, 2017, the Financing Corporation issued the Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
2017A (Housing Project) (the “Series 2017A Bonds”) and used a portion of the proceeds to refund the Capital Improvement
Revenue Bonds, Series 2003, in the outstanding amount of $33,870,000. The internally restricted funds held to provide
additional security and cash liquidity for the Series 2003 Bonds are now associated with the Series 2017A Bonds.
At June 30, 2018, the Financing Corporation had no outstanding bonds payable related to the Capital Improvement Revenue
Bonds, Series 2003.
(2)

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2007A, and 2007C
On May 10, 2007, the Financing Corporation issued Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2007A in the amount of
$25,000,000 representing the par amount plus original issue premium in the amount of $604,702 and Capital Improvement
Revenue Bonds, Series 2007C in the amount of $10,000,000 representing the par amount, less the original issue discount
in the amount of $187,832. The proceeds derived from the sale of the Series 2007A Revenue Bonds were used to finance
the construction and equipping of a new 407 bed suite style student residence facility (South Village Student Residence
Complex - Phase VIII) including a new foodservice facility; and the proceeds derived from the sale of the Series 2007C
Revenue Bonds were used to finance the construction of a new 900 space parking garage (Parking Facilities Phase II).
Interest is payable based upon fixed rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.00% and is paid semi-annually with principal payable in
varying amounts annually on February 1, 2009 through 2037. At the time of issuance, insurance premiums were paid in
the amounts of $226,000 for the Series 2007A and $100,000 for the Series 2007C representing the charge for a transfer of
credit risk and issuance of a Bond Insurance Policy. The Bonds are collateralized by the net rental revenues of the student
residences system and parking system.
On July 1, 2014 the Financing Corporation Board of Director’s internally restricted cash to be held as a reserve in an amount
equivalent to the maximum annual debt service of $1,588,767 for Series 2007A Bonds and $609,481 for Series 2007C
Bonds to provide additional security and cash liquidity for the bonds. Internally restricted funds are invested with the State
Treasury and included in Unrestricted Net Position.
On November 29, 2017 the Financing Corporation issued the Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
2017A (Housing Project) (the “Series 2017A Bonds”) and the Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
2017B (Parking Project) (the “Series 2017B Bonds”). The Financing Corporation used a portion of the proceeds from the
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Series 2017A Bonds to refund the Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2007A, in the outstanding amount of
$20,200,000 and used a portion of the proceeds from the Series 2017B Bonds to refund the Capital Improvement Revenue
Bonds, Series 2007C, in the outstanding amount of $8,060,000. The internally restricted funds held to provide additional
security and cash liquidity for the Series 2007A Bonds are now associated with the Series 2017A Bonds. The internally
restricted funds held to provide additional security and cash liquidity for the Series 2007C Bonds are now associated with
the Series 2017B Bonds.
At June 30, 2018 the Financing Corporation had no outstanding bonds payable related to the Capital Improvement Revenue
Bonds, Series 2007A and 2007C.
(3)

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2008A
On May 1, 2008, the Financing Corporation issued Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2008A in the par amount
of $22,000,000. The proceeds derived from the sale of the Series 2008A Revenue Bonds were used to finance the
construction and equipping of a new 407 bed high rise suite style student residence facility and related improvements as an
addition to the Housing System located on the University’s main campus (South Village Student Residence Complex –
Phase IX). Interest on the 2008A bonds accrues at a weekly adjustable rate, as determined by the remarketing agent and
is payable monthly. As of June 30, 2018, the variable interest rate was 1.51%. Principal is payable in varying amounts and
is due annually on February 1, 2010 through 2038. The Financing Corporation has purchased, as additional collateral on
the revenue bonds, a letter of credit that expires at various dates but is intended to remain in effect until either the revenue
bonds are retired or all the interest rates are converted from variable to fixed. The 2008A bonds are collateralized by the
net rental revenues of the student residences system.
At June 30, 2018, net position included $3,000,000 that is required to be held (restricted) as a condition of the
Reimbursement Agreement dated December 13, 2012. Of this restricted amount, $1,000,000 was required to be held
(restricted) as a condition of the outstanding Capital Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 but is now associated with the Capital
Improvement Bonds, Series 2008A as a result of the fixed rate conversion of the Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2003,
and the Master Capital Lease Operating Agreement. The required reserve funds are invested with the State Treasury and
included in Restricted Net Position.
On February 1, 2018, a principal bond payment in the amount of $565,000 was paid leaving the outstanding Capital
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2008A in the amount of $17,660,000 at June 30, 2018.

(4)

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A
On May 7, 2009, the Financing Corporation issued Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A in the par amount
of $8,000,000. The proceeds derived from the sale of the Series 2009A Revenue Bonds were used to finance the
construction and equipping of an approximately 785 space parking garage and related improvements (Parking Facilities
Phase III) as an addition to the Parking System located on the University’s main campus. Interest on the 2009A bonds
accrues at a weekly adjustable rate, as determined by the remarketing agent and is payable monthly. As of June 30, 2018,
the variable interest rate was 1.55%. Principal is payable in varying amounts and are due annually on February 1, 2011
through 2039. The Financing Corporation has purchased, as additional collateral on the revenue bonds, a letter of credit
that expires at various dates but is intended to remain in effect until either the revenue bonds are retired or all the interest
rates are converted from variable to fixed. The 2009A bonds are collateralized by the net rental revenues of the parking
system.
At June 30, 2018, net position includes $1,000,000 that is required to be held (restricted) as a condition of the
Reimbursement Agreement dated May 1, 2009, and the Master Capital Lease Operating Agreement. The required reserve
funds are invested with the State Treasury and included in Restricted Net Position.
On February 1, 2018, a principal bond payment in the amount of $210,000 was paid leaving the outstanding Capital
Improvement Revenue Bond Series 2009A in the amount of $6,510,000 at June 30, 2018.

(5)

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A and 2010B
On July 28, 2010, the Financing Corporation issued Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A in the amount of
$32,000,000 representing the par amount less the original issue discount in the amount of $138,451. The proceeds derived
from the sale of the Series 2010A Revenue Bonds were used to finance the construction and equipping of a new five story,
417 bed suite style private bedroom student residence facility and associated parking garage with approximately 1,200
parking spaces and related site improvements (South Village Student Residence Complex - Phase X). Interest is payable
based upon fixed rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.50% paid semi-annually with principal payable in varying amounts annually
on February 1, 2012 through 2040. The Bonds are collateralized by the net rental revenues of the student residences
system.
On October 14, 2010, the Financing Corporation issued Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B in the amount
of $17,000,000 representing the par amount, less the original issue discount in the amount of $45,669. The proceeds
derived from the sale on the Series 2010B Revenue Bonds were used to acquire an existing apartment complex (West Lake
Student Residence Complex - Phase XI), including approximately sixteen acres of land, seven existing buildings and all
fixtures, furnishing, equipment, and other personal property owned and used in connection with the operation of the property.
The new West Lake Village Student Residence Complex is located approximately one mile northeast of the University’s
main campus adding 504 beds to the current Housing System. Interest is payable based upon fixed rates ranging from
2.00% to 5.50% paid semi-annually with principal payable in varying amounts annually on February 1, 2012 through 2040.
The Bonds are collateralized by the net rental revenues of the student residences system.
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A Debt Service Reserve Account within the Sinking Fund was established for Series 2010A in the required amount of
$2,106,181 and for Series 2010B in the required amount of $1,086,800 to provide additional security for the bonds and
lower the overall interest rates. The Trustee invests the funds held in the Debt Reserve Sinking Account and applies any
accrued investment earnings against the payment of principal and interest. The required reserve funds are invested with
the State Treasury and included in Restricted Net Position
On February 1, 2018, a combined principal bond payment in the amount of $1,115,000 was paid. Therefore, at June 30,
2018, there remained outstanding Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2010A in the amount of $27,238,989 net of
unamortized discount of $101,011 and Capital Improvement Bonds Series 2010B in the amount of $14,470,517 net of
unamortized discount of $34,483.
(6)

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2011A
On June 28, 2011, the Financing Corporation issued Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2011A in the amount of
$30,000,000 representing the par amount less the original issue discount in the amount of $35,974. The proceeds derived
from the sale of the Series 2011A Revenue Bonds were used to finance the construction and equipping of a new five story
534 bed suite style private bedroom student residence facility (South Village Student Residence Complex - Phase XII).
Interest is payable based upon fixed rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.50% paid semi-annually with principal payable in varying
amounts on February 1, 2014 through 2041. The Bonds are collateralized by the net rental revenues of the student
residences system.
A Debt Service Reserve Account within the Sinking Fund was established for Series 2011A in the required amount of
$2,067,363 to provide additional security for the bonds and lower the overall interest rates. The Trustee invests the funds
held in the Debt Reserve Sinking Account and applies any accrued investment earnings against the payment of principal
and interest. The required reserve funds are invested with the State Treasury and included in Restricted Net Position.
On February 1, 2018, a principal bond payment in the amount of $645,000 was paid. Therefore, at June 30, 2018 there
remained outstanding Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2011A in the amount of $26,937,538 net of unamortized
discount of $27,462.

(7)

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A
On June 11, 2013, the Financing Corporation issued Capital Improvement Revenue bonds, Series 2013A in the amount of
$30,000,000 representing the par amount plus the original issue premium in the amount of $1,036,701. The proceeds
derived from the sale of the Series 2013A Revenue Bonds were used to finance the construction and equipping of a new
six story 535 bed suite style private bedroom student residence facility (South Village Student Residence Complex – Phase
XIII). Interest is payable based upon fixed rates ranging from 2.25% to 5.00% paid semi-annually with principal payable in
varying amounts on February 1, 2016 through 2043. The Bonds are collateralized by the net rental revenues of the student
residences system.
A Debt Service Reserve Account within the Sinking Fund was established for Series 2013A in the required amount of
$1,927,213 to provide additional security for the bonds and lower the overall interest rates. The Trustee invests the funds
held in the Debt Reserve Sinking Account and applies any accrued investment earnings against the payment of principal
and interest. The required reserve funds are invested with the State Treasury and included in Restricted Net Position.
On February 1, 2018, a principal bond payment in the amount of $705,000 was paid. Therefore, at June 30, 2018 there
remained outstanding Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A in the amount of $28,786,485 net of unamortized
premium of $861,485.

(8)

Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A and 2017B
On November 29, 2017 the Financing Corporation issued the Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
2017A (Housing Project) (the “Series 2017A Bonds”) and the Capital Improvement Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
2017B (Parking Project) (the “Series 2017B Bonds”).
The Series 2017A Bonds were issued in the amount of $47,500,000 plus original issue premium of $6,456,991. The
proceeds from the sale of the Series 2017A Bonds were used to (i) refund the outstanding Capital Improvement Revenue
Bonds, Series 2003 (Housing Project), and the Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2007A (Housing Project), and
(ii) pay costs relating to the issuance of the Series 2017A Bonds. Interest is payable based upon fixed rates ranging from
3.38% to 5.00% paid semi-annually with principal payable in varying amounts on August 1, 2018 through 2036.
The Series 2017B Bonds were issued in the amount of $7,850,000 plus original issue premium of $398,563. The proceeds
from the sale of the Series 2017B Bonds were used to (i) refund the outstanding Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds,
Series 2007C (Parking Project), and (ii) pay costs relating to the issuance of the Series 2017B Bonds. Interest is payable
based upon fixed rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00% paid semi-annually with principal payable in varying amounts on
February 1, 2018 through 2037.
On July 1, 2014, the Financing Corporation Board of Director’s internally restricted cash to be held as a reserve in an amount
equivalent to the maximum annual debt service of the refunded bonds, Series 2003, Series 2007A and Series 2007C. The
internally restricted funds for Series 2003 and Series 2007A are now associated with the refunding bonds Series 2017A
and the internally restricted funds for Series 2007C are now associated with the refunding bonds Series 2017B. At June 30,
2018, the internally restricted funds held as a reserve to provide additional security and cash liquidity were $4,084,688 for
Series 2017A Bonds and $565,600 for the Series 2017B Bonds Internally restricted funds are invested with the State
Treasury and included in Unrestricted Net Position
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During the year ended June 30, 2018, no principal payment was made on the Series 2017A Bonds. On February 1, 2018,
a principal bond payment in the amount of $350,000 was paid on Series 2017B Bonds. Therefore, at June 30, 2018 there
remained outstanding Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A in the amount of $53,755,210 net of unamortized
premium of $6,255,210 and there remained outstanding Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B in the amount
of $7,886,433 net of unamortized premium of $386,433.
The following is a schedule of future minimum payments remaining under the outstanding Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds and
Loans payable at June 30, 2018:

Years Ending
June 30
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024 - 2028
2029 - 2033
2034 - 2038
2039 - 2043
Subtotal
Add, Bond Discounts
and Premium, Net
Total

$

$

Principal
5,885,000
6,095,000
6,435,000
6,690,000
6,970,000
39,670,000
49,935,000
44,570,000
19,655,000
185,905,000

7,340,172
193,245,172

$

$

Interest*
8,181,158
7,948,848
7,691,506
7,427,385
7,137,240
30,915,214
20,951,359
10,316,934
2,280,870
102,850,514

102,850,514

$

$

Total
14,066,158
14,043,848
14,126,506
14,117,385
14,107,240
70,585,214
70,886,359
54,886,934
21,935,870
288,755,514

7,340,172
296,095,686

* Includes interest accrued at fixed and variable rates at June 30, 2018 of 2.00 - 5.50%.

7.

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES/DEFERRED GAIN ON DEBT REFUNDING
The unrestricted net position balance includes the effect of recognizing a deferred inflow of resources in the total amount of
$468,550 originating from the gain on refunding of the Capital Improvement Revenue Bond Series 2003, Capital
Improvement Revenue Bond Series 2007A, and Capital Improvement Revenue Bond Series 2007C.
The Financing Corporation issued the Series 2017A Bonds resulting in a gain of $216,497 and the Series 2017B Bonds
resulting in a gain of $252,053.
The Financing Corporation recognized amortization of the deferred gain of $14,436 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

8.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The University operates and pays all operating costs of the facilities leased from the Financing Corporation from the gross
rental income from the respective student residences and parking facilities. The Net Rental Income is then paid to the
Financing Corporation by the University in arrears based on collections. Therefore, no receivable is recorded. The
University provides office space and related occupancy costs such as utilities and use of other office machines at no cost
to the Financing Corporation. No amounts are reflected in these Financial Statements of the Financing Corporation at June
30, 2018, for these items either as donated revenue or the offsetting expenses as no reasonable basis has been determined
to value these costs.
During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Financing Corporation transferred $3,963,024 to the University. At June 30,
2018, the Financing Corporation reported a Due to University of $408,122.

9.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Financing Corporation has outstanding contracts, commitments or contingencies for the North Lake Village
Improvement Project with a current remaining commitment in the amount of $5,774 as of June 30, 2018. The Financing
Corporation committed to fund the project of which approximately $2,002,113 was expended at June 30, 2018 and
transferred to the University to maintain and operate.
The Financing Corporation pledged to an interest free loan to the University to be used as a financing component for the
planned Wellness and Fitness Center, if needed.
The Financing Corporation Board of Directors approved funding for up to $8 million to construct a Student and Community
Counseling Center to be repaid by the University. At June 30, 2018, $7,796 had been expended towards the Counseling
Center.

10. RISK MANAGEMENT
The Financing Corporation is third party insured against risk of loss applicable to the Corporation.
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11. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
The Financing Corporation investments are reported at book value, which is fair value using the cost approach to valuation
in the accompanying Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2018 as follows:
Fair Value Measurements at
Reporting Date Using:

Carrying
Value

Description
Assets
Investments - SPIA
Total Assets

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets For
Identical Assets
Level (1)

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets For
Similar Assets
Level (2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
Level (3)

$

34,669,596

$

34,669,596

$

-

$

-

$

34,669,596

$

34,669,596

$

-

$

-

Investments – SPIA are cash investments that are held by the State (of Florida) Treasury Special Purpose Investment
Account and are readily available.
Financial Instruments not Measured at Fair Value
Financial instruments not measured at fair value include cash and cash equivalents, receivables, accounts payable, and
accrued expenses. The carrying amounts of these items approximates fair value due to the short term nature of the financial
instruments.
Fair Value Measurements
FASB ASC 820-10-50-1 through 820-10-50-8 (formerly Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 157, “Fair
Value Measurements”) established a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. This hierarchy consists of three broad levels: Level (1) inputs consist of unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets and have the highest priority, Level (2) inputs consist of observable inputs or unobservable inputs that
are corroborated by market data, and Level (3) inputs have the lowest priority. The Financing Corporation uses appropriate
valuation techniques based on the available inputs to measure the fair value of its investments. When available, the
Financing Corporation measures fair value using Level (1) inputs because they generally provide the most reliable evidence
of fair value.
Effective for the year ended June 30, 2016, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 72 “Fair Value Measurement Application”.
This statement requires new disclosures of (a) transfers in and out of Levels 1 and 2 to include reasons for the transfers as
well, and (b) reconciliation for fair value measurements using significant, unobservable inputs. Level 3 should be presented
separately on a gross basis, rather than as one net number. This update also provided amendments that clarify existing
disclosures such as the level of disaggregation for each class of assets and liabilities as well as disclosures about inputs
and valuation techniques. Investments are reported at book value which is fair value; the adoption of this update has no
impact on the financial statements.
Level (1) Fair Value Measurements
The fair value of investments in SPIA is based on quoted market prices in an active market for identical assets.
Level (2) Fair Value Measurements
Observable inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data.
Level (3) Fair Value Measurements
Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data.

49

FGCU Board of Trustees Audit and Compliance Committee - December 3, 2018

Affiliations
Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Private Companies Practice Section
Tax Division

Page 24 of 27
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Basic Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Florida Gulf Coast University Financing Corporation
10501 FGCU Boulevard South
Fort Myers, Florida 33965-6565
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America, the accompanying
basic financial statements of Florida Gulf Coast University Financing Corporation (Financing
Corporation) which comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2018, and the related
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then
ended and the related notes to the financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
August 20, 2018.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Florida Gulf
Coast University Financing Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Florida Gulf Coast University Financing
Corporation’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Florida Gulf Coast University Financing Corporation’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the basic financial statements will not be prevented or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

INTEGRITY ......... SERVICE ......... EXPERIENCE
12621 World Plaza Lane, Building 55 • Fort Myers, FL 33907 • Phone: (239) 333-2090 • Fax: (239) 333-2097
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO MANAGEMENT

Board of Directors
Florida Gulf Coast University Financing Corporation
10501 FGCU Boulevard South
Fort Myers, Florida 33965-6565
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Florida Gulf Coast
University Financing Corporation (the “Financing Corporation”), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2018, we considered the Florida Gulf Coast University Financing Corporation’s internal
controls over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness of the Financing Corporation’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Financing
Corporation’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Financing Corporation’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.
In connection with our audit, we are submitting the following comments and recommendations
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. These comments and recommendations are
submitted for your review and consideration, items noted during the audit and recommendations
are designed to help the Financing Corporation make improvements and achieve operational
efficiencies. Our comments reflect our desire to be of continuing assistance to the Florida Gulf
Coast University Financing Corporation.

INTEGRITY ......... SERVICE ......... EXPERIENCE
12621 World Plaza Lane, Building 55 • Fort Myers, FL 33907 • Phone: (239) 333-2090 • Fax: (239) 333-2097
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ITEM: _4__
Florida Gulf Coast University Board of Trustees
Audit and Compliance Committee
December 3, 2018

SUBJECT: Florida Gulf Coast University Foundation, Inc. Independent
Auditor's Report Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION
Accept the Florida Gulf Coast University Foundation, Inc. Independent Auditor's
Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 and recommend its acceptance
by the FGCU Board of Trustees.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Each direct support organization of a state university is required to conduct an
annual audit of its accounts and records by an independent certified public
accountant in accordance with Section 1004.28(5), Florida Statutes. FGCUPR1.005 (6) requires that annual reports related to FGCU direct support
organizations be submitted to the FGCU Board of Trustees.
The firm of Cherry Bekaert, LLP has completed the audit report of the Foundation
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The Foundation's Audit Committee
approved the audit report at its November 2, 2018 meeting. The Foundation's
Executive Committee will consider acceptance at its November 20, 2018
meeting, and if accepted, will be considered by the Foundation's Board of
Directors at its December 5, 2018 meeting.

Supporting Documentation Included: (1) Summary Memo and (2) Florida Gulf
Coast University Foundation, Inc. Independent Auditor's Report for the Year
Ended June 30, 2018.
Prepared by: Director of Internal Audit William Foster
Legal Review by: N/A
Submitted by: Director of Internal Audit William Foster

56

FGCU Board of Trustees Audit and Compliance Committee - December 3, 2018

TO:
FROM:
SUBJECT:
DATE:

FGCU Board of Trustees Audit and Compliance Committee
William Foster, Director of Internal Audit
Annual Audit, Florida Gulf Coast University Foundation, Inc.
December 3, 2018

Below is a summary of the key points in the Financial Audit of the Florida Gulf Coast University
Foundation, Inc..
Page 1 – Opinion – The auditors have determined the financial statements fairly present the financial
position of the Foundation. This is known as a clean opinion.
Pages 3 through 10 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis – This is the section where Management
describes in reader friendly terms what occurred in the last fiscal year. This section points out major
transactions, and presents comparative figures from the prior year.
Page 11 – Statement of Net Position – Years ago, this statement was known as the Balance Sheet. At
year end, there were $131.5 million of total assets, $1.6 million total liabilities and deferred inflows, and
net position (residual equity) $129.9 million.
Page 12 – Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – This statement was formerly
known as an Income Statement. For the year, we had $11.6 million in operating revenue, $16.1 million
operating expenses, and $7.2 million net non-operating revenue (primarily $6.9 million in investment
gains), and $3.7 million net contributions to endowments, arriving at a $6.4 million increase in net
position.
Pages 13 and 14– Statement of Cash Flows – This statement shows the effects to cash from the financial
transactions. The net effect is a $1.4 million decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the year.
Pages 16 through 29 - Notes to the Financial Statements – There is a significant amount of information
to explain the various line items in the financial statements. Compared to Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, these notes are not necessarily as reader friendly.
Pages 30 through 41 – Supplementary Information – This section of the report includes additional
required State schedules and also provides a breakdown of the financial statements by account type.
Pages 42 and 43 – Auditor’s Report on Internal Control and Compliance– This report on internal control
relates financial reporting and compliance with Government Auditing Standards.
Pages 44 and 45 - Schedule of Findings and Responses - There was a deficiency in internal controls noted,
as a Material Weakness in Financial Reporting. The Foundation had taken an overly conservative approach
to valuing land held for investment, and in classifying unrestricted funds used to supplement restricted
projects. As noted in the Effect paragraph, these actions did not involve any loss, impairment, or
overstatement of Foundation assets.
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY
FOUNDATION, INC.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
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Report of Independent Auditor
Board of Directors
Florida Gulf Coast University Foundation, Inc.
Fort Myers, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Florida Gulf Coast University Foundation, Inc.
(the “Foundation”), a direct support organization and component unit of Florida Gulf Coast University, which
comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of revenues, expenses,
and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Foundation as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Adjustments to Prior Period Financial Statements
The financial statements of the Foundation as of June 30, 2017, were audited by other auditors whose report
dated September 26, 2017, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. As discussed in
Note 12 to the financial statements, the Foundation has restated its June 30, 2017 financial statements to: (a)
retrospectively apply the change in accounting of gift annuities due to the implementation of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements, (b) retrospectively
correct unrestricted and restricted net position consistent with external restrictions, (c) retrospectively correct the
value of land held for investment to fair value. The other auditors reported on the financial statements before the
retrospective adjustments.
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As part of our audit of the June 30, 2018 financial statements, we also audited the adjustments to the June 30,
2017 financial statements to retrospectively apply the change in accounting as described in Note 12. In our
opinion, such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. We were not engaged to audit, review,
or apply any procedures to the Foundation’s June 30, 2017 financial statements other than with respect to the
adjustments and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the June 30, 2017
financial statements as a whole.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 3-10 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that comprise the
Foundation’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information as of and for the year ended June 30,
2018, as listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and is derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated [REPORT DATE] on
our consideration of the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Tampa, Florida
November 2, 2018

2
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017
Florida Gulf Coast University Foundation, Inc. (the “ Foundation”) is a direct support organization and
component unit of Florida Gulf Coast University (a governmental agency) (the “University”). The Foundation
accounts for its transactions in accordance with the pronouncements issued by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (“GASB”).
The Foundation is considered a Business-Type Activity (“BTA”) under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34,
Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments
and GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statement - Management's Discussion and Analysis - for
Public Colleges and Universities. The BTA format includes accounting on an accrual basis and the recording
of depreciation. The statements are a presentation of 1) assets and liabilities as current and noncurrent and
deferred inflows of resources; 2) revenues and expenses as operating and non-operating; 3) the use of the
direct and indirect methods for statement of cash flows; and 4) management's discussion and analysis
(“MD&A”) of the financial results.
The objective of the MD&A is to focus on current activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts to
provide the reader with an overall summary of the accompanying financial statements. It should be read in
conjunction with the basic financial statements and accompanying notes.
The financial statements include the following:
1) Basic financial statements a) Statements of Net Position
b) Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
c) Statements of Cash Flows
d) Notes to the Financial Statements, and
2) Supplementary Schedules to the financial statements

Financial Highlights
Foundation Scholarships
2018
The Foundation paid scholarships during the fiscal year 2018 totaling $3,163,757, an increase of 9.2% from
fiscal year 2017's $2,898,404. It also represents a new high for Foundation scholarships awarded within a fiscal
year.
2017
The Foundation paid scholarships during the fiscal year 2017 totaling $2,898,404, an increase of 17.6% from
fiscal year 2016's $2,463,993.
Major Gifts
The 2011 legislature suspended the Major Gifts Matching Program effective July 1, 2011. The program may
be restarted after $200 million of the backlog for programs have been matched. Existing eligible donations
remain eligible for future matching funds. The Foundation's existing request to the State of Florida for matching
gifts is $11.7 million as of June 30, 2018 and 2017.
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017
The following sections in the MD&A include an analysis of the three basic financial statements listed on the
previous page.

Statements of Net Position
The purpose of the statements of net position is to present the reader with a look at the Foundation's financial
condition as of the end of the fiscal year.
In reading the statements of net position, the reader will be able to determine the Foundation's ability to continue
operations; how much it owes to vendors and other lending institutions; and provide a snapshot of the assets
and their availability for spending by the Foundation.
Condensed Summary of Net Position
(in thousands of dollars)

2018

2017
(Restated)

2016
(Restated*)

$

$

2018 ‐ 2017
Increase
(Decrease) Change

Assets
Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Total Assets

$

23,568
107,961

24,226
103,151

23,749
94,601

(658)
4,810

(2.7%)
4.7%

4,152

3.3%

131,529

127,377

118,350

Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

142
461

2,527
453

4,554
2,695

(2,385)
8

(94.4%)
1.8%

Total Liabilities

603

2,980

7,249

(2,377)

(79.8%)

978

857

741

43,901
74,869
11,178

39,606
71,068
12,865

38,160
64,291
7,909

4,295
3,801
(1,687)

10.8%
5.3%
(13.1%)

$ 129,948

$ 123,539

110,360

6,409

5.2%

Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Gift annuities

121

14.1%

Net Position
Restricted by donors-expendable
Permanent endowments-nonexpendable
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

*Fiscal year 2016 net position was not restated for the reclassification of unrestricted and restricted net position referenced in
Note 12 as the amounts were not reasonably determinable.
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017
The 2018 and 2017 s tatements of net position is presented on page 11 of the basic financial statements. For
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the total net position increased $6.4 million (5.2%). This year's activity
included the following:

Assets
2018
Current assets decreased slightly by $0.7 million (2.7%). Cash and cash equivalents decreased by
approximately $1.4 million. The cash position in the Foundation's investment pool at June 30, 2018 was $1.0
million, almost four times that on June 30, 2017.
Other noncurrent assets increased by $4.8 million (4.7%). Investments increased by $5.7 million (6.5%) due to
endowed contributions and positive returns. The Foundation’s investment pool had a one year return of 7.86%
at June 30, 2018.
2017
Current assets increased by $477,000 (2.0%). Cash and cash equivalents increased by approximately $1
million. The cash position in the Foundation's investment pool at June 30, 2017 was almost half that on June 30,
2016.
Other noncurrent assets increased by $8.5 million (9.0%) due to a combination of favorable factors. During 2017,
Investments increased by $13 million (17%) while Loans receivable decreased by $5 million.

Liabilities
2018
Current liabilities decreased by $2.4 million (94.4%) mainly due to the payoff of a $2.3 million loan.
Noncurrent liabilities increased by $8,000 (1.8%) due to new gift annuities in fiscal year 2018.
2017
Total liabilities decreased by $4.2 million (58.9%) as a result of the Florida Gulf Coast Financing Corporation's
repayment of $5 million for Naples land purchase.

Deferred Inflows of Resources
2018
Deferred inflows of resources for gift annuities increased by $121,000 (14.1%) due to earnings on the gift annuity
investment and current year contributions.
2017
Deferred inflows of resources for gift annuities increased by $116,000 (15.7%) due to earnings on the gift annuity
investment and current year contributions.
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

Net Position
The net position section of the statements of net position provides two classifications:
1) The restricted assets are listed in two categories:
a) The restricted by donors category represents amounts which are available for spending in
accordance with the donor's specified criteria, and
b) The permanent endowments category represents the Foundation’s restricted nonexpendable
funds, which are required to be held in perpetuity.
2) The unrestricted assets are the amounts available to the Foundation for any purpose in support of its
mission.
2018
The net position at June 30, 2018 increased to $129.9 million, which is 5.2% more than the $123.5 million in 2017.
The change in net position equals the excess of funds and pledges received over the amounts expensed and
amortized. For fiscal year 2018, the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position reflects a
$6.4 million (5.2%) increase in net position.
2017
The net position at June 30, 2017 increased to $123.5 million, which is 11.9% more than the $110.4 million in
2016.
The change in net position equals the excess of funds and pledges received over the amounts expensed and
amortized. For fiscal year 2017, the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position reflects a
$13.2 million (11.9%) increase in net position.

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
The purpose of the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position is to provide the details of
the Foundation's operating and non-operating activities for the fiscal year. This includes the revenues displayed
by major source (net of discounts), expenditures, and gains and losses received by the Foundation.
The statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position include the following categories:


Operating revenues are revenues received from donors (i.e., contributions, etc.) and services provided
(i.e., special events, etc.) to various customers and constituents of the Foundation.



Operating expenses are detailed by expense type, which include program fees, scholarships,
University support, and general administrative expenses, etc.



Operating loss represents the amount of expenses in excess of current year's revenues and does not
include non-operating revenue.



Non-operating revenue is received from sources for which no service is provided by the Foundation
(i.e., investments).



Capital additions represent endowment contributions and intergovernmental revenues.



The change in net position is the result of the current year's excess revenues over expenses, which is
also the change in total net position on the statements of net position.
6
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017
Condensed Summary of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
(in thousands of dollars)

2017
(Restated)

2018
Operating Revenues:
Contributions
Other income
Total operating revenues
Less operating expenses
Operating Gain (Loss)

$

8,599
3,051
11,650
16,160
(4,510)

$

10,479
3,750
14,229
16,869

2016
(Restated)
$

(2,640)

2018 ‐ 2017
Increase
(Decrease) Change

13,687
3,502
17,189
13,218

(1,880)
(699)
(2,579)
(709)

(17.9%)
(18.6%)
(18.1%)
(4.2%)

3,971

(1,870)

70.8%

Non-Operating Income:
Interest earnings
Impairment loss on land held for sale
Net appreciation/(depreciation) of
investments

274
-

202
-

27
(419)

6,919

9,272

(1,803)

(2,353)

(25.4%)

Non-Operating Revenue (Expense)

7,193

9,474

(2,195)

(2,281)

(24.1%)

Income before endowment contributions

2,683

6,834

1,776

(4,151)

(60.7%)

Endowment Contributions:
Contributions to endowments

3,725

6,346

3,480

(2,621)

(41.3%)

6,408

13,180

5,256

(6,772)

(51.4%)

123,540

110,360

105,104

13,180

11.9%

$ 129,948

$ 123,540

110,360

6,408

5.2%

Increase in net position
Net position, beginning of the year
Net position, end of the year

$

72
-

35.6%
N/A
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017
The 2018 and 2017 statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position is on page 12 of the basic
financial statements. The statements' highlights are as follows:

Operating Revenues
2018
Contributions decreased by $1.9 million (18.0%) compared to 2017. Unrestricted and restricted gifts are classified
as contributions whereas endowed gifts are classified as increases to permanent endowment.
Other income decreased by $700,000 (18.6%) mainly due to the estimated revenue of $725,000 related to the
addition of Land held for investment in 2017. Athletic sponsorships and other income continue to increase.

2017
Contributions decreased by $3.2 million (23.4%) compared to 2016. This comparative decrease is due to the
significant increase in contributions in 2016 for the Athletics Alico Arena expansion project. Unrestricted and
restricted gifts are classified as contributions whereas endowed gifts are classified as increases to permanent
endowment.
Other income increased by $247,000 (7.1%). Athletic sponsorships and other income continue to increase
offset by a decrease in mining royalties in 2017 resulted in a decrease compared to 2016.

Operating Expenses
2018
The Foundation assisted the University in providing program services including salaries, scholarships, operating
expenses, and equipment in the amount of $16.2 million. This represented a 3.9% decrease from 2017.
The Foundation disbursed $3.2 million for scholarships in 2018. This amount represents the largest total
Foundation scholarships awarded within a fiscal year.

2017
The Foundation assisted the University in providing program services including salaries, scholarships, operating
expenses, and equipment in the amount of $16.8 million. This represented a 28.3% increase from 2016.
The Foundation disbursed $2.9 million for scholarships in 2017.
The Foundation expended $12.2 million in direct Program Fees and University Support in 2017, a 36.1% increase
from the $9.0 million expended in 2016.
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

Non‐Operating Revenue (Expense)
2018
Non-operating revenues decreased mainly due to a reduction in investment earnings of $7.2 million in 2018
compared to $9.4 million in 2017. The Foundation also had interest earnings of $274,000 in 2018, a 35.7%
increase from 2017.

2017
Non-operating revenues had a significant increase from 2016 solely due to positive investment returns in 2017.
The Foundation had interest earnings of $202,000 and net investment earnings of $9.4 million for the year ended
June 30, 2017.

Endowments
2018
Contributions to endowments decreased by $2.6 million (41.3%) compared to 2017. During 2018, the Foundation
received $3.7 million in contributions to endowments. The Foundation received a major endowed gift of $2.3
million for the benefit of the Dr. Elaine Nicpon Marieb College of Health & Human Services. The Foundation
received $250,000 for an endowment that will aid faculty to enhance their teaching and classroom management
skills. The Foundation also received five contributions to endowments between $100,000 and $150,000 for an
Eminent Scholar in Science, scholarships, the Resort and Hospitality Management program, and in support of the
University’s Art Gallery. The Foundation also received many contributions to endowments under $100,000 for the
purpose of scholarships and programs that will benefit the University’s faculty, staff, and students.
2017
Contributions to endowments increased by $2.9 million (82.4%) compared to 2016. During 2017, the Foundation
received $6.3 million in contributions to endowments. The Foundation received a major endowed gift of $2.3
million for the benefit of the Dr. Elaine Nicpon Marieb College of Health & Human Services. The Foundation
received a major endowed gift of approximately $1 million for the benefit of the Bower School of Music. In addition,
the Bower School of Music also received an estate distribution of almost $400,000 to add to an endowment for
operations. The Foundation received $250,000 for an endowment that will aid faculty to enhance their teaching
and classroom management skills. WGCU Public Media received a $200,000 major gift to an endowment for the
benefit of WGCU. The Foundation received $400,000 to add to an unrestricted endowed scholarship. The
Foundation also received many contributions to endowments under $100,000 for the purpose of scholarships and
programs that will benefit the University’s faculty, staff, and students.
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

Statements of Cash Flows
The statements of cash flows displays the cash provided and used for operating, investing activities, non-capital
financing, capital, and related financing.
Operating activities include funds received (i.e., from private donors, fees, matching programs, etc.) and
payments (i.e., for programs, scholarships, University support, etc.) made for the Foundation's operations.
Investing activities represent funds used to purchase investments and associated investment earnings.
Capital and related financing activities include outflows of cash for debt service, capital expenses, and other
notes payable and receivable.

Debt Administration
As of June 30, 2018, the Foundation had no outstanding loans. See Note 7 for further details.
As of June 30, 2017, the Foundation had one outstanding loan $2.25 million. See Note 7 for further details.

Economic Outlook
The Foundation’s investments increased by 7.5% in fiscal year 2018.
On the first day of classes for academic year 2018-2019 there were 15,127 students enrolled at Florida Gulf Coast
University. The University’s economic outlook is strong for fiscal year 2019. Several new buildings will be
constructed in 2018-2019, leaving the physical campus approximately 70% built out. The University will receive
approximately $13.7 million in new reoccurring state appropriations for student success initiatives and new
academic programs, and an additional $9.2 million in Performance Base Funding. The University will also receive
an additional $14 million towards its construction costs for Academic Building number 9.
The Foundation has no knowledge of any current facts, decisions, or conditions that are expected to have a
significant effect on the financial position or its results of operations during the next fiscal year.
Management believes the Foundation’s overall position is strong. The Foundation has sufficient funds to cover its
obligations.

Request for Information
This financial report is designed to provide the reader an overview of the Foundation. Questions regarding any
information provided in this report should be directed to: Chief Financial Officer, Florida Gulf Coast University
Foundation, Inc., 10501 FGCU Blvd. South, Fort Myers, Florida 33965, (239) 745-4365.
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

2017
(as restated)

2018
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Prepaid lease
Pledges receivable, net
Royalties receivable

$

Total Current Assets

20,696,953
1,904,737
7,249
27,144
867,437
64,236

$

22,121,851
952,477
5,308
21,842
861,693
263,249

23,567,756

24,226,420

94,459,199
10,914
1,206,586
119,624
454,285
16,186
11,693,500

88,721,926
17,610
1,900,500
74,873
725,553
16,186
11,693,500

Total Noncurrent Assets

107,960,294

103,150,148

Total Assets

131,528,050

127,376,568

62,412
79,307

201,610
2,250,000
75,032

141,719

2,526,642

461,362

453,341

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

461,362

453,341

Total Liabilities

603,081

2,979,983

977,641

856,864

43,900,550
74,868,547
11,178,231

39,606,355
71,068,047
12,865,319

Noncurrent Assets:
Investments
Prepaid lease, net of current portion
Pledges receivable, net
Surrender value of insurance policy
Land held for investments
Land held for resale
Land holdings

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Loans payable
Gift annuities payable
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Gift annuities payable, net of current portion

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Gift Annuities

NET POSITION
Restricted
Expendable
Nonexpendable endowments
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$ 129,947,328

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

2017
(as restated)

2018
Operating Revenues:
Contributions
Other income

$

Total Operating Revenue
Operating Expenses:
Program Services:
Program fees
Scholarships
University support
General and administrative expenses
Return of restricted contribution
Other Expenses:
Interest
Amortization
Total Operating Expenses
Operating loss
Nonoperating Revenues:
Interest earnings
Net investment gain
Net gain on sale of land held for resale

8,598,201
3,051,455

$

10,480,085
3,749,550

11,649,656

14,229,635

4,716,492
3,163,757
6,914,143

4,671,746
2,898,404
7,513,533

1,319,731
3,775

1,612,850
73,112

16,117,898

16,769,645

19,971
21,842

78,817
20,374

41,813

99,191

16,159,711

16,868,836

(4,510,055)

(2,639,201)

273,631
6,919,439

201,593
9,162,352

-

109,211

Total Nonoperating Revenues

7,193,070

9,473,156

Income before endowment contributions

2,683,015

6,833,955

Endowment Contributions:
Contributions to endowments

3,724,592

6,345,612

Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

6,407,607
123,539,721

13,179,567
110,360,154

Net position, end of year

$ 129,947,328

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

2017
(as restated)

2018
Cash flows from operating activities:
Received from private donors
Received from other sources
Payments to University for programs
Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Prior year contributions returned

$

Net cash flows from operating activities

9,286,371
3,519,795
(14,814,840)
(1,325,856)
(3,775)

$

12,130,083
2,037,184
(15,106,231)
(1,431,771)
(73,112)

(3,338,305)

(2,443,847)

20,017,051
(17,354,926)
(2,476,970)
273,631

52,800,500
(58,503,713)
1,673,575
232,211
201,593

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Purchases of investments
Investment earnings received
Proceeds from sale of land held for resale
Interest earnings received
Net cash flows from investing activities

458,786

(3,595,834)

3,724,592
(19,971)

6,345,612
5,000,000
(4,000,000)
(39,650)

3,704,621

7,305,962

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Endowment Contributions
Cash received on loan receivable
Principal payments on loans payable
Interest paid on debt
Net cash flows from noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Principal payments on loans payable
Interest paid on capital debt
Net cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

(2,250,000)
-

(300,000)
(73,548)

(2,250,000)

(373,548)

(1,424,898)
22,121,851

892,733
21,229,118

$

20,696,953

$

22,121,851

$

4,442,469

$

7,488,777

Supplemental disclosures of noncash related investing activities:
Net change in unrealized and realized gain

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

72

13

FGCU Board of Trustees Audit and Compliance Committee - December 3, 2018

FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

2017
(as restated)

2018
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash flows from
operating activities:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by operating activities
Interest paid on debt
Amortization
Change in allowance and present value discount
of pledges and annuities
Deferred Inflow of resources related to gift annuities
Land held for investment
Effect of changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid lease
Pledges receivable
Accounts receivable
Royalties receivable
Gift annuity payable
Accounts payable
Net cash flows from operating activities

$

$

(4,510,055)

(2,639,201)

19,971
21,842

78,817
-

159,869
120,777
271,268

116,252
(725,553)

1,394
573,911
(1,941)
199,013
(55,156)
(139,198)

(2,174)
924,445
1,989
(263,249)
8,817
56,010

(3,338,305)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

Note 1—Nature of organization and summary of significant accounting policies
Nature of Organization – The Florida Gulf Coast University Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”) was incorporated
on April 29, 1993 as a Florida not-for-profit foundation under the provisions of Chapter 617 of the Florida Statutes.
The Foundation is a direct support organization as certified by the Board of Regents on June 14, 1993. The
Foundation was established to encourage, solicit, collect, receive, and administer gifts and bequests of property
and funds for scientific, educational, and charitable purposes, for the advancement of Florida Gulf Coast University
(the “University”) and its objectives.
Reporting Entity – The Foundation is considered a discrete component unit of the University due to the University's
budgetary oversight responsibility and due to the Foundation's significant operational and financial relationships
with the University. Management has determined no entities are required to be reported as component units of
the Foundation.
Basis of Accounting – The Foundation follows Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement
No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments, as amended; GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion
and Analysis - for Public Colleges and Universities; GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments: Omnibus - an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 21 and No. 34; and GASB Statements No. 38, Certain Financial Statements Note Disclosures.
GASB Statements No. 34 and No. 35 established standards for external financial reporting which includes a
statement of net position, a statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and a statement of
cash flows using the direct method. GASB Statements No. 34 and 35 also include a requirement that management
provide a discussion and analysis of the basic financial statements and it requires the classification of net position
into two components - net restricted and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows:




Restricted – Includes funds Restricted by donors - Expendable and Nonexpendable endowments.
o

Restricted-Expendable – includes funds whose use by the Foundation is subject to donor-imposed
stipulations that can be fulfilled by actions of the Foundation pursuant to those stipulations, or by
passage of time.

o

Restricted-Nonexpendable Endowments – includes funds subject to donor-imposed stipulations that
they be maintained permanently by the Foundation to use all or part of the related investment return
for general or specific purposes in support of the University.

Unrestricted – Consists of funds that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "invested in capital
assets”.

The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recognized when they are incurred.
As a general practice, the Foundation applies restricted resources when an expense relating to the purpose
restriction imposed by the outside party is incurred before unrestricted resources are used.
Cash and Cash Equivalents – For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Foundation considers cash on
hand, cash on deposit, money market mutual funds, and all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

Note 1—Nature of organization and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents held on June 30, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018
Unrestricted
$

8,725,258

Restricted
$

Endowed

11,012,821

$

958,874

Total
$

20,696,953

$

22,121,851

2017
Unrestricted
$

10,910,858

Restricted
$

Endowed

10,973,538

$

237,455

Total

Pledges Receivable – The Foundation accounts for its pledges in accordance with GASB Statement No. 33,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions. GASB Statement No. 33 establishes
reporting standards for nonexchange transactions, whereby unrestricted and restricted pledges receivable are
recorded in the statements of net position and endowment pledges are excluded from the statements of net
position.
Pledge receivables are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of the gift, less an appropriate reserve for
uncollectible amounts. Amounts expected to be received after one year are discounted using the appropriate riskfree rate. Amortization of the discount is recorded as additional contribution revenue in accordance with the donorimposed restrictions. The Foundation does not require collateral in relation to these receivables.
Investments – Investments are reported at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Fair value determinations, other than those measured using the net asset value (“NAV”) as a practical expedient,
are made based upon a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1
measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).
Level 1 – Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
Foundation has the ability to access.
Level 2 – Inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for
identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability; inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by
observable market data by correlation or other means. If the asset or liability has a specific
(contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset
or liability.
Level 3 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in situations where there is little or no
market activity for the asset or liability, and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions
related to the pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.
The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy, is based on the lowest level
of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
Realized and unrealized gains and losses are reflected in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes
in net position.
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Note 1—Nature of organization and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Land Holdings – Land holdings are capitalized at cost if purchased or at acquisition value at the time of
contribution.
Land Held for Resale or Held for Investment – Land held for resale or land held for investment are recorded at
estimated fair value.
Gift Annuity Payable – The Foundation is obligated under charitable gift annuity agreements. The obligations were
calculated based on actuarial assumptions and the fair values at the dates of receipt. The Foundation has
recorded an annuity payable equal to the present value of the total anticipated future payments to the
beneficiaries.
Deferred Inflows of Resources – In addition to liabilities, the statements of net position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The foundation has one item that meets the criterion for this category related to gift
annuity payments. This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amount
becomes available.
Income Taxes – The Foundation is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code as an organization described in section 501(c)(3). However, the Foundation is subject to income
tax on unrelated business income. The Foundation is classified as an organization operated for the benefit of a
college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in Section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv).
Operating and Nonoperating Activities – The Foundation's operating income includes all revenues and expenses
associated with the Foundation’s daily activities. Interest and net investment earnings are excluded from operating
income and classified as nonoperating revenues. Contributions received for endowments or from state matching
funds are also excluded from operating and nonoperating activities and are classified as endowment contributions.
Revenue Recognition – Contributions are recognized as increases in net position when received provided all
eligibility requirements have been met, with the exception of pledges to the endowment which are recognized
when received. Assets donated to the Foundation are recorded at their estimated acquisition value at the date of
donation. Real estate donated for the advancement of the University is reported as Land Holdings pending sale
or the transfer to the University. Revenues associated with irrevocable split-interest agreements are recognized
when the resources become applicable to the reporting period.
Estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures
of assets, liabilities, and deferred inflow of resources, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results may differ from those estimated.
Subsequent Events – Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 2, 2018, in connection
with the preparation of these financial statements, which is the date the financial statements were available to be
issued.
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Note 2—Cash, cash equivalents, and investments
Deposits – Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Foundation's deposits may not
be returned to it. The Foundation’s policy regarding custodial credit risk is to hold non-invested cash in a financial
institution covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) not exceeding the limit of FDIC Coverage.
Non-invested cash in excess of FDIC coverage will be held in a certified Qualified Public Depository (QPD) as
identified by the Florida Security for Public Deposits Act, Chapter 280, Florida Statute. At June 30, 2018 and
2017, the bank balances totaled $14,049,260 and $16,911,794, respectively. Of the bank balance, $943,465 and
$942,227 was covered by federal depository insurance with the remainder collateralized under the Florida Security
for Public Deposits Act. The Foundation also had cash held on deposit with investment managers at June 30,
2018 and 2017 totaling $1,047,974 and $274,739, respectively, of which $493,147 and $274,739, respectively,
was covered by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation.
The Foundation has an account with the State Treasury Special Purpose Investment Account (“SPIA”). This
account represents ownership of a share of the Florida Treasury Investment Pool, not the underlying securities.
At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Florida Treasury Investment Pool carried a credit rating of A+f by Standard &
Poor's and had an effective duration of 3.00 and 2.80 years, respectively. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the
Foundation had cash equivalents of $5,761,883 and $5,667,210, respectively, with the State Treasury Special
Purpose Investment Account (SPIA).
Designated Cash – Starting July 2010, the Foundation board decided to annually designate a portion of
unrestricted cash to a Scholarship Reserve. The Scholarship Reserve will be determined and approved as part of
the annual operating budget. This reserve will be used at the Foundation's discretion to support endowed
scholarships that are unable to fund its annual allotment. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Scholarship Reserve
was $1,166,180 and $1,061,871, respectively.
Investments – The Foundation's investment policy allows for investments in domestic equities, international
equities, fixed income and alternatives. For fixed income instruments, the Foundation's investment policy allows
for investment in domestic, global, U.S. inflation projected, U.S. high yield emerging market bonds, short term
bonds, multi-sector bond, unconstrained bond and cash equivalents. For alternatives instruments, the
Foundation's investment policy allows for private equity, absolute return (hedge funds), real assets and
commodities.
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Note 2—Cash, cash equivalents, and investments (continued)
Investments consist of the following at June 30, 2018:

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices
in Active
Significant
Markets
Other
Significant
for Identical
Observable
Unobservable
Assets
Inputs
Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)
Investments by Fair Value Level:
Equity Investment:
U.S. equities
Mutual Funds:
U.S. portfolio
International equities
Fixed income
Fixed Income Investments:
Mortgage-backed securities
Corporate bonds
Government obligations
Municipal bonds
U.S. treasury notes
Land held for investment
Land held for resale
Total Investments by Fair Value Level
Investments Measured at the NAV
or its Equivalent:
Collective Investment Funds:
NT Common US Marketcap Index
Fund
Other Investments:
Real Assets
Surrender value of insurance policy
Private Equity
Total Investments Measured at the NAV
or its Equivalent
Total Investments measured at fair
value

$

261,015

$

261,015

$

-

$

-

22,903,604
19,970,613
10,755,029
53,629,246

22,903,604
19,970,613
10,755,029
53,629,246

-

-

751,760
7,533,849
2,890,969
4,172,381
1,085,175
16,434,134

-

751,760
7,533,849
2,890,969
4,172,381
1,085,175
16,434,134

-

454,285
16,186
70,794,866

$ 53,890,261

16,186
$ 16,450,320

454,285
454,285

$

24,330,065
24,330,065
239,809
119,624
1,469,667
1,829,100
26,159,165
$ 96,954,031
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Note 2—Cash, cash equivalents, and investments (continued)
Investments consist of the following at June 30, 2017:

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices
in Active
Significant
Markets
Other
Significant
for Identical
Observable
Unobservable
Assets
Inputs
Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)
Investments by Fair Value Level:
Equity Investment:
U.S. equities
Mutual Funds:
U.S. portfolio
International equities
Fixed income
Fixed Income Investments:
Mortgage-backed securities
Corporate bonds
Government obligations
Municipal bonds
U.S. treasury notes
Land held for investment
Land held for resale
Total Investments by Fair Value Level
Investments Measured at the NAV
or its Equivalent:
Collective Investment Funds:
NT Common US Marketcap Index
Fund
Other Investments:
Real Assets
Surrender value of insurance policy
Private Equity
Total Investments Measured at the NAV
or its Equivalent
Total Investments measured at fair
value

$

222,692

$

222,692

$

-

$

-

21,484,317
18,944,117
10,033,082
50,461,516

21,484,317
18,944,117
10,033,082
50,461,516

-

-

971,754
6,808,905
2,961,057
4,267,728
931,847
15,941,291

-

971,754
6,808,905
2,961,057
4,267,728
931,847
15,941,291

-

725,553
16,186
67,367,238

$ 50,684,208

16,186
$ 15,957,477

725,553
725,553

$

21,183,891
21,183,891
264,839
74,873
1,600,174
1,939,886
23,123,777
$ 90,491,015
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

Note 2—Cash, cash equivalents, and investments (continued)
Fair Value Measurement – Debt and equity securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued
using prices quoted in active markets for those securities. Debt securities classified as Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy are valued using quoted prices for similar assets in active markets.
Other information for investments measured at the NAV or its equivalent follows:

June 30, 2018

Fair
Value

Unfunded
Commitments

NT Common US Marketcap Index Fund
Real Assets
Surrender value of insurance policy
Private Equity

$ 24,330,065
239,809
119,624
1,469,667

$

90,000
178,450

Total Investments Measured at the NAV
or its Equivalent

$ 26,159,165

$

268,450

Redemption
Frequency (if
Currently
Eligible)
Daily
Not available
Not available
Not available

Redemption
Notice
Period
1 trade day
NA
NA
NA

June 30, 2017

Fair
Value

Unfunded
Commitments

NT Common US Marketcap Index Fund
Real Assets
Surrender value of insurance policy
Private Equity

$ 21,183,891
264,839
74,873
1,600,174

$

90,000
240,250

Total Investments Measured at the NAV
or its Equivalent

$ 23,123,777

$

330,250

Redemption
Frequency (if
Currently
Eligible)
Daily
Not available
Not available
Not available

Redemption
Notice
Period
1 trade day
NA
NA
NA

Collective Investment Funds – The primary objective of the Northern Trust (“NT”) U.S. Market Cap Index Fund is
to approximate the risk and return characteristics of the Dow Jones U.S. Total Stock Market Index. This Index is
commonly used to represent the broad U.S. market.
Real Assets – This investment is in a partnership that invests in a diversified portfolio of private equity and real
assets investment funds (underlying funds or private investment funds), which in turn have been established to
invest in a broad range of private equity, real estate, energy, and other hard asset oriented investments.
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Note 2—Cash, cash equivalents, and investments (continued)
Private Equity – The investment within this segment invest in private equity funds in the venture capital, buyout,
and capital restructuring sectors.
Surrender Value of Life Insurance – These instruments are valued using the cash value provided by the
administrator of the policy. The NAV is based on the value of the underlying assets owned by the policy, minus
its liabilities. The NAV is excluded from the valuation hierarchy.
Custodial Credit Risk – The Foundation utilizes the services of an investment advisor and several investment
managers to manage its portfolio.
For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Foundation
will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party.
At June 30, 2018 and 2017 the Foundation’s collective investment fund investments were uninsured and
unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the Foundation’s name.
The investment in mutual funds are not categorized as to custodial risk as they are not evidenced by securities
that exist in physical or book entry form. These mutual funds are not rated by a nationally statistical rating
organization.
There were no losses during the period due to default by counterparties to investment transactions.
Interest Rate Risk – Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the value of an
investment.
As of June 30, 2018, the maturities of the Foundation's fixed income investments were as follows:

2018
Investment Maturities
Market
Value
lnvestment Type:
Mortgage-backed securities
Corporate bonds
Government obligations
Municipal bonds
U.S. treasury notes
Totals

$

Less than
1 Year

1 ‐ 5 Years

751,760
7,533,849
2,890,969
4,172,381
1,085,175

$

23
139,730
301,227
318,185
-

$

322,845
5,294,566
2,589,742
2,038,909
1,085,175

$ 16,434,134

$

759,165

$ 11,331,237

5 ‐10 Years
$

428,892
2,069,789
1,815,287
-

$ 4,313,968

Over
10 years
$

29,764
-

$ 29,764
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Note 2—Cash, cash equivalents, and investments (continued)
As of June 30, 2017, the maturities of the Foundation's fixed income investments were as follows:

2017
Investment Maturities
Market
Value
lnvestment Type:
Mortgage-backed securities
Corporate bonds
Government obligations
Municipal bonds
U.S. treasury notes
Totals

$

Less than
1 Year

971,754
6,808,905
2,961,057
4,267,728
931,847

$ 15,941,291

$

1 ‐ 5 Years

791,731
10,282
618,116
-

$ 1,420,129

$

361,173
3,671,552
2,950,775
1,778,112
931,847

$ 9,693,459

5 ‐10 Years
$

Over
10 years

565,509
2,296,501
1,871,500
-

$ 45,072
49,121
-

$ 4,733,510

$ 94,193

Credit Risk – Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
The Foundation’s investment policy manages credit risk by limiting:




A maximum equity holdings of 5% in any single company as a percentage of cost of the total equity
portfolio
A maximum equity holdings of 15% in a single non-US Country as a percentage of market value of total
equity portfolio
A maximum fixed income of 5% holdings in a single corporate issuer (excluding US Government and
Agencies) as a percentage of cost to total fixed income portfolio.

At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Foundation's fixed income investments were rated as follows:

2018
Rating
AAA
AA
A
BBB

Number

Fair
Value

35
25
63
2

$ 4,902,218
3,603,096
7,579,145
349,675

% Bond
Holdings
29.83%
21.92%
46.12%
2.13%

$ 16,434,134

2017
Rating
AAA
AA
A
BBB

Number

Fair
Value

33
27
59
3

$ 4,700,509
4,390,829
6,240,717
609,236

% Bond
Holdings
29.49%
27.54%
39.15%
3.82%

$ 15,941,291
23
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Note 2—Cash, cash equivalents, and investments (continued)
Concentration of Credit Risk – The concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss that may be caused by the
Foundation's investment in a single issuer. The Foundation's policy requires a maximum equity holdings of 5% in
any single company as a percentage at cost of the total equity portfolio, a maximum equity holdings of 15% in a
single non-US country as a percentage at market value of total equity portfolio and a maximum fixed income of
5% holdings in a single corporate issuer (excluding US Government and agencies) as a percentage at cost of
total fixed income portfolio.
Other Information – For management control, investments are pooled. Gains, losses, and investment income from
the pool are allocated quarterly to the funds that participate in the pool based upon each fund's average quarterly
balance.
The Foundation assesses a management fee on all endowment funds for the purpose of funding the Foundation’s
operating budget. Administrative fees assessed to the endowment funds totaled $1,315,517 or 1.5% for the year
ending June 30, 2018 and $1,134,763 or 1.5% for the year ending June 30, 2017.

Note 3—Endowments
The Endowment Fund account balances (including cash balances) subject to the administrative fees are
comprised as follows at June 30:

2018
Eminent Scholars Program
Major Gifts Program
Other Endowment

2017

$

14,334,507
43,126,133
33,736,140

$

13,871,400
41,834,430
28,937,960

$

91,196,780

$

84,643,790

The Foundation authorizes expenditures for the uses and purposes for which endowment funds were established.
The Foundation's general spending calculation for eligible endowments is 4.0% of the average market balances
on December 31 for each of the immediately preceding three years. The following displays the total ending
endowment balances for nonexpendable endowments or donor-restricted endowments on June 30:

2018
Total endowment balance
Less appreciation portion deemed restricted expendable

2017

$

91,196,780
16,328,233

$

84,643,790
13,575,743

$

74,868,547

$

71,068,047
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Note 4—Pledges receivable
Present value of the June 30, 2018 pledges receivable was calculated using the US Treasury risk free discount
rate of 2.33% along with an allowance for doubtful amounts based on historical collection rates. Pledges
receivable are expected to be received as follows:
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter

$

883,282
586,000
332,500
386,500

Total pledges receivable

$

2,188,282

Pledge receivable, net, are summarized as follows at June 30:

2018
Total pledges receivable
Less: Allowance for doubtful amounts
Less: Discount on future payments
Long-term portion of pledges receivable

2017

$

2,188,282
(15,845)
(98,414)

$

2,762,193
-

$

2,074,023

$

2,762,193

Note 5—Due from State of Florida – matching gifts program
The State University System Trust Fund for Major Gifts provides the opportunity for state universities to receive
and match private gifts to endow: a) scholarships and fellowships, b) faculty positions such as eminent scholar
chairs and professorships, and c) funds for library holdings and acquisitions. Based on the gift received, which
must equal or exceed $100,000, the Foundation is eligible to receive 50% - 100% matching funds.
State matching pledge receivables are recorded when a donor commitment is fulfilled and matching funds have
been appropriated by the State of Florida. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Foundation submitted matching
funds requests totaling $11,754,634 to the State of Florida. Due to the State of Florida's current economic
conditions, the legislature did not appropriate the matching funds for these requests. Therefore, the $11,754,634
has not been recorded in the financial statements. Although the State has not eliminated the matching gifts
programs, it is currently unknown as to when the State will appropriate the matching funds.
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Note 6—Land holdings
Land holdings activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was as follows:

2018
Beginning
Balance

Increase

Ending
Balance

Decrease

Land held for resale

$

16,186

$

-

$

-

$

16,186

Land held for investment

$

725,553

$

-

$

271,268

$

454,285

Land holdings

$

11,693,500

$

-

$

-

$

11,693,500

2017
Beginning
Balance

Increase

Ending
Balance

Decrease

Land held for resale

$

139,186

$

-

$

123,000

$

16,186

Land held for investment
(as restated)

$

-

$

725,553

$

-

$

725,553

Land holdings

$

11,693,500

$

-

$

-

$

11,693,500

On December 11, 2002, the Foundation received land valued at $123,000. The land’s original planned use was
for the College of Arts and Sciences for the environmental studies programs. However, in fiscal 2016, it was
decided that this property would not be used for the original intended purpose and was reclassified to land held
for resale. In fiscal year 2017 the property was sold.
On September 15, 2005, the Foundation received land valued at $435,000. The land was a potential site for
Florida Gulf Coast University in Charlotte County. However, in fiscal 2016, it was decided that this property will
not be used for the original intended purpose and was reclassified to land held for resale. An impairment loss of
$418,814 was recognized due to the change in use of this property. On June 30, 2018 and 2017 the carrying
value of the Charlotte County land is $16,186.
On March 22, 2005, the Foundation received a contribution of land valued at $106,000. The land will be used by
the College of Arts and Sciences for the environmental studies programs.
On July 5, 2007, the Foundation executed a bargain purchase for waterfront property in Bonita Springs. This
property is now the home of the Florida Gulf Coast University Vester Marine Science and Environmental Education
Center. The property, valued at $3,887,500, was purchased for $2,870,000, resulting in a donation of $1,017,500.
The purchase of this property was financed with a $3,000,000 loan from Northern Trust Bank (See Note 7).
On May 27, 2014, the Foundation received land valued at $7,700,000. Located north of the University's main
campus. The land will be used for the University's future expansion needs. Included with this land is a reverter
clause that prohibits the sale of the land within 20 years.
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Note 6—Land holdings (continued)
On January 19, 2017, the Foundation reacquired ownership to 215 acres of mining land that was originally donated
to the Foundation in 1994 and subsequently sold to a third party. The Foundation receives royalties from the
mining sales on the property through a lease agreement with an external party. The value of the property is
deemed to be the estimated future royalty revenue and is listed as Land held for investment on the statement of
net position. The Foundation maintains commercial general liability insurance on the property while the lessee is
responsible for liabilities associated with the mining operations. The lessee bears the responsibility of
environmental remediation after the mined resources are depleted. The responsibility would become the
Foundation’s should the lessee become insolvent. At June 30, 2018 the estimated value of the land held for
investment was $454,285. The value of the land was restated for the year ended June 30, 2017 from $0 to
$725,553 which resulted in ending net position for the year ended June 30, 2017 to be restated, see further
information on the restatement in Note 12.

Note 7—Loans Payable
The Foundation borrowed $5,000,000 to assist a related entity acquire real estate in Naples, Florida (See
Note 10). The line of credit was at an interest rate of 65% of prime. Principal payments are made when donations
are received for this project. This line of credit was renewed and reduced to $4,000,000 in 2009. In October 2011,
the interest rate was renegotiated to 65% of prime rate minus 50 basis points. In December 2016 the related entity
sold the land and repaid the associated debts and the line of credit expired on December 15, 2017.
On July 27, 2007, the Foundation secured a $3,000,000 five-year loan from Northern Trust Bank at a fixed rate of
4.28% to purchase the Florida Gulf Coast University Vester Marine Science and Environmental Education Center
property. On December 15, 2012, the Foundation renewed this loan into a five-year variable interest rate loan
which includes an annual principal payment of $150,000. This loan bore interest at 65% of prime rate (2.7625%
at June 30, 2017) which was payable quarterly. In October 2017 the Foundation used unrestricted cash to pay off
the $2,250,000 loan balance. The Foundation currently has a lease agreement with the University whereby the
University pays the Foundation a lease payment of $32,000 a month for the use of this waterfront property in
Bonita Springs. This lease is cancelable at any time with 30 days’ notice. The monthly lease payment is used to
cover all expenses of owning the property including but not limited to: principal repayments, insurance, utilities,
landscaping, and general maintenance. On June 30, 2018 and 2017, the outstanding balance of this loan was
$-0- and $2,250,000, respectively.
A summary of changes in loans payable is as follows:

June 30, 2017
Loans Payable

$

2,250,000

Increase
$

June 30, 2016
Loans Payable

$

6,550,000

Decrease
-

$

Increase
$

2,250,000

Decrease
-

$

4,300,000

June 30, 2018
$

-

June 30, 2017
$

2,250,000
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Note 8—Operating leases
The Foundation leases facilities in Naples, Florida. Lease expense for the facilities for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $191,839 and $190,253, respectively. The lease expires on March 31, 2020 with
scheduled lease payments for fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 and 2020 total $196,635 and $133,256,
respectively.

Note 9—Annuities Payable
The Foundation manages charitable gift annuities. These annuities are irrevocable split-interest agreements
where the Foundation is the remainder interest beneficiary that makes quarterly distributions to the annuitant.
GASB Statement No. 81 established financial reporting standards for irrevocable split-interest to include assets,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. The asset is the market value of resources received; the liability is
the present value of future payments to annuitants; the deferred inflow of resources is the difference between the
asset and the liability.
Net position, as of July 1, 2016, as reported in the Statements of Net Position, was restated for the effects of
implementing GASB Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements. GASB Statement No. 81 requires
that a government that receives resources pursuant to an irrevocable split-interest agreement recognize and
report assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. The Foundation’s assets will remain the same however,
the deferred inflow will be reported separate of net position. See Note 12 regarding further information on the
restatement.

Note 10—Related party transactions
The Foundation maintains a portion of its investments and had a loan with Northern Trust Bank. A Foundation
board member was an officer of Northern Trust Bank during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. The
Foundation’s investments managed by Northern Trust Bank at June 30, 2018 and 2017 totaled $24,431,131 and
$21,328,834. The Foundation had outstanding loans totaling $-0- and $2,250,000 with Northern Trust Bank at
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and incurred $19,971 and $113,198 in interest expense during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
The Foundation maintains a portion of its fixed income investments with Wasmer, Schroeder & Company, Inc.
A Foundation board member was an officer of Wasmer, Schroeder & Company, Inc. during the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2018 and 2017. The Foundation’s investments managed by Wasmer, Schroeder & Company, Inc. at
June 30, 2018 and 2017 totaled $12,590,412 and $11,359,524, respectively.
The Foundation also has a lease agreement with the University whereby the University pays the Foundation a
lease payment of $32,000 a month for the use of the waterfront property in Bonita Springs. The monthly lease
payment is used to cover all the expenses of owning the Florida Gulf Coast University Vester Marine Science and
Environmental Education Center.
For the year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Foundation received payments from the University totaling
$195,765 and $194,580, respectively, for reimbursable costs, associated with the operating lease (Note 8),
incurred by the Foundation.
The Foundation’s operating bank account is held with Fifth Third Bank. A Foundation board member was an officer
of Fifth Third Bank during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. On June 30, 2018 and 2017, the
Foundation had $12,595,242 and $15,463,990 on deposit at Fifth Third Bank, respectively.
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

Note 11—Risk Management
The Foundation is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The Foundation carries commercial insurance for the risks of loss.
There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year, and there have been no
settlements that exceed the Foundation's insurance coverage during the past three years.

Note 12—Restatements
As referenced in Note 9, amounts previously reported at June 30, 2017 have been restated for implementation of
GASB Statement No. 81. In addition, amounts previously reported at June 30, 2017 have also been restated for
corrections of two errors. The referenced restatements had the following effects on amounts previously reported
at June 30, 2017:
Unrestricted
Net Position, beginning of year, as previously reported
Restatement for implementation of GASB
Statement No. 81 (Note 9)

$

Restricted

5,457,551

$

6,682,215

Restatement for net position reclassification
Restatement for land held for investments value
adjustment (Note 6)
$

12,865,319

Land held for investment, as previously reported
Restatement for land held for investments value
adjustment (Note 6)

$

-

Land held for investment, as restated

$

725,553

$

$

Restricted
$

-

$

-

(856,864)
-

-

725,553

84,643,790

$ 123,539,721

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

725,553

-

725,553

Endowment
-

$

(856,864)
$

Total
-

$

Restricted

$

-

$

$ 123,671,032

Endowment
-

725,553

Unrestricted

Deferred inflows of resources - gift annuities, as restated

26,030,612

Total

84,643,790

-

Unrestricted

Deferred inflows of resources - gift annuities,
as previously reported
Restatement for implementation of GASB
Statement No. 81 (Note 9)

$

(856,864)
(6,682,215)

725,553

Net Position, beginning of year, as restated

Endowment

33,569,691

(856,864)

Total
-

$

$

-

(856,864)

$

(856,864)

Note 13—Contingencies
The Foundation participates in state assisted grant programs that are subject to review and audit by the grantor
agencies. Entitlement to these resources is generally conditional upon compliance with the terms and conditions
of the grant agreements and applicable state regulations. Any disallowance resulting from a regulatory audit may
become a liability of the Foundation. Liabilities, if any, from such audits, if any, are recorded when the amounts of
such liabilities become reasonably determinable.
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
EMINENT SCHOLARS PROGRAM
SCHEDULES OF RECEIPTS, EXPENDITURES, AND ENDOWMENT BALANCES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

Beginning
Corpus
July 1, 2017
Alico Endowed Chairs
Backe Endowed Chair
Davis Endowed Chair
Moorings Park Endowed Chair
Southwest Florida Nursing Endowed Chair
Sproul Endowed Chair
Uncommon Friends Endowed Chair
Whitaker Endowed Chair

Beginning
Balance
July 1, 2017

Net
Investments
Earnings

Expenditures

Ending
Corpus
June 30, 2018

Ending
Balance
June 30, 2018

$

2,105,512
1,000,001
1,067,270
1,020,000
1,144,768
600,000
1,020,000
1,022,000

$

3,800,244
1,248,988
1,415,744
1,391,066
2,415,950
769,909
1,269,501
1,559,998

$

-

$

237,289
77,851
88,156
86,810
150,948
48,185
78,983
97,234

$

131,509
45,177
42,841
31,729
17,048
30,000
42,793
61,252

$

2,105,512
1,000,001
1,067,270
1,020,000
1,144,768
600,000
1,020,000
1,022,000

$

3,906,024
1,281,662
1,461,059
1,446,147
2,549,850
788,094
1,305,691
1,595,980

$

8,979,551

$

13,871,400

$

-

$

865,456

$

402,349

$

8,979,551

$

14,334,507

Beginning
Corpus
July 1, 2016
Alico Endowed Chairs
Backe Endowed Chair
Davis Endowed Chair
Moorings Park Endowed Chair
Southwest Florida Nursing Endowed Chair
Sproul Endowed Chair
Uncommon Friends Endowed Chair
Whitaker Endowed Chair

Cash
Contributions/
Sate Match
Received

Beginning
Balance
July 1, 2016

Cash
Contributions/
Sate Match
Received

Net
Investments
Earnings

Expenditures

Ending
Corpus
June 30, 2017

Ending
Balance
June 30, 2017

$

2,105,512
1,000,001
1,067,270
1,020,000
1,144,768
600,000
1,020,000
1,022,000

$

3,582,101
1,174,282
1,309,033
1,293,458
2,274,413
726,198
1,191,135
1,473,001

$

-

$

366,299
120,780
134,504
132,583
231,452
74,461
121,927
150,257

$

148,156
46,074
27,793
34,975
89,915
30,750
43,561
63,260

$

2,105,512
1,000,001
1,067,270
1,020,000
1,144,768
600,000
1,020,000
1,022,000

$

3,800,244
1,248,988
1,415,744
1,391,066
2,415,950
769,909
1,269,501
1,559,998

$

8,979,551

$

13,023,621

$

-

$

1,332,263

$

484,484

$

8,979,551

$

13,871,400
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
MAJOR GIFTS PROGRAM
SCHEDULES OF RECEIPTS, EXPENDITURES, AND ENDOWMENT BALANCES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Beginning
Corpus
July 1, 2017

Name of Major Gift
Abernathy Kiwanis
Alico
ASQ Aviation
BB&T
BCCDLM
Belcher/Oliff
Benson
Blue Shield of Florida
Bower Music Fund
Bower Music/ Art Excellence
Campbell
Cobb
Collier
Conner #2
Conservancy
Edith Potter Deats
Embassy
Faith
Fifth Third
Golden Apple
Gralnick
Hilliard
Honors
Howard
Johnson

$

100,000
1,362,550
100,000
540,000
226,000
164,639
260,911
150,000
166,838
5,399,980
175,000
225,000
382,000
2,707,000
1,006,079
214,043
150,082
541,070
100,000
150,000
387,500
150,000
219,213
700,000
225,034

Beginning
Balance
July 1, 2017
$

110,837
1,576,839
134,487
626,516
252,420
186,228
310,808
169,103
229,306
5,915,084
201,281
258,723
522,678
3,004,987
1,215,364
411,893
182,713
617,018
117,051
212,104
434,587
178,435
309,380
783,086
250,884

Cash
Contributions/
Sate Match
Received
$

60,000
1,000
700
390
-

Net
Investments
Earnings
$

6,922
98,527
8,406
38,822
15,765
11,635
19,407
10,561
14,333
368,747
12,571
16,161
32,636
187,726
75,232
25,741
11,421
38,543
7,310
13,266
27,166
11,158
19,249
48,922
15,669

Expenditures
$

4,300
61,500
19,780
9,800
7,100
12,200
6,600
219,771
7,800
10,100
20,400
120,000
46,219
2,983
7,100
18,200
4,500
4,800
14,900
6,800
12,077
19,000
9,800

Ending
Corpus
June 30, 2018
$

100,000
1,362,550
100,000
600,000
226,000
165,639
260,911
150,000
166,838
5,400,680
175,000
225,000
382,000
2,707,000
1,006,079
214,043
150,082
541,070
100,000
150,000
387,500
150,000
219,603
700,000
225,034

Ending
Balance
June 30, 2018
$

113,459
1,613,866
142,893
705,558
258,385
191,763
318,015
173,064
243,639
6,064,760
206,052
264,784
534,914
3,072,713
1,244,377
434,651
187,034
637,361
119,861
220,570
446,853
182,793
316,941
813,008
256,753
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
MAJOR GIFTS PROGRAM
SCHEDULES OF RECEIPTS, EXPENDITURES, AND ENDOWMENT BALANCES (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Beginning
Corpus
July 1, 2017

Name of Major Gift
Kelly
Keys
Kleman
Kraft
Kuss
Lester
Liebert #1
Liebert #2
Lucas
Lutgert
Lutgert College of Business
Manchester
Meftah
Moorings Park
Nason
Northern Trust
O'Bannon
Oulton
Perry
Rockin' Christmas
Rogaski

$

4,580,886
150,000
200,000
173,334
57,750
227,159
90,911
4,000,252
150,000
853,896
4,001,000
240,000
535,500
176,724
100,000
150,000
216,588
368,611
242,350
100,400
150,000

Beginning
Balance
July 1, 2017
$

5,373,412
172,731
228,882
275,271
187,467
75,059
271,071
358,893
4,379,735
267,035
1,197,680
4,212,287
612,134
203,669
115,536
223,262
251,965
430,923
268,605
114,913
169,975

Cash
Contributions/
Sate Match
Received
$

-

Net
Investments
Earnings
$

335,637
10,792
14,302
12,536
3,840
17,618
6,540
288,469
13,632
63,773
276,937
17,322
38,236
12,721
7,204
13,909
15,748
26,911
16,782
7,181
10,616

Expenditures
$

211,000
6,800
8,900
7,600
900
8,409
4,000
176,095
38,298
174,300
3,200
19,100
7,000
4,500
7,500
7,700
16,800
10,600
4,400
6,600

Ending
Corpus
June 30, 2018
$

4,580,886
150,000
200,000
173,334
57,750
227,159
90,911
4,000,252
150,000
853,896
4,001,000
240,000
535,500
176,724
100,000
150,000
216,588
368,611
242,350
100,400
150,000

Ending
Balance
June 30, 2018
$

5,498,049
176,723
234,284
280,207
190,407
84,268
273,611
471,267
4,393,367
292,510
1,300,317
4,226,409
631,270
209,390
118,240
229,671
260,013
441,034
274,787
117,694
173,991
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
MAJOR GIFTS PROGRAM
SCHEDULES OF RECEIPTS, EXPENDITURES, AND ENDOWMENT BALANCES (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Beginning
Corpus
July 1, 2017

Name of Major Gift
Schoen Foundation
Siebert
Slocum
Stranahan
Sulick
SWFL Wine & Food
Tier Electric
Vitelli
von Arx
W. Thomas Howard
Wells Fargo
Williams
Zepcevski

Beginning
Balance
July 1, 2017

Cash
Contributions/
Sate Match
Received

Net
Investments
Earnings

Expenditures

Ending
Corpus
June 30, 2018

Ending
Balance
June 30, 2018

$

455,276
317,411
105,000
209,545
150,050
150,000
100,000
1,273,006
250,000
188,249
150,000
100,000
250,000

$

505,699
356,053
120,989
277,436
176,421
172,055
109,589
1,314,974
343,555
272,997
168,137
119,980
294,228

$

100,000
-

$

31,243
22,232
7,556
17,339
11,018
10,746
6,843
82,181
21,055
17,064
10,501
7,493
18,376

$

15,700
13,800
4,700
10,800
6,900
6,700
3,600
13,300
13,200
6,500
4,500
11,500

$

555,276
317,411
105,000
209,545
150,050
150,000
100,000
1,273,006
250,000
188,249
150,000
100,000
250,000

$

621,242
364,485
123,845
283,975
180,539
176,101
112,832
1,383,855
351,410
290,061
172,138
122,973
301,104

$

36,266,837

$

41,834,430

$

162,090

$

2,610,246

$

1,480,634

$

36,428,927

$

43,126,133
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
MAJOR GIFTS PROGRAM
SCHEDULES OF RECEIPTS, EXPENDITURES, AND ENDOWMENT BALANCES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Beginning
Corpus
July 1, 2016

Name of Major Gift
Abernathy Kiwanis
Alico
ASQ Aviation
BB&T
BCCDLM
Belcher/Oliff
Benson
Blue Shield of Florida
Bower Music Fund
Bower Music/ Art Excellence
Campbell
Cobb
Collier
Conner #2
Conservancy
Edith Potter Deats
Embassy
Faith
Fifth Third
Golden Apple
Gralnick
Hilliard
Honors
Howard
Johnson

$

100,000
1,362,550
100,000
480,000
226,000
163,639
260,911
150,000
166,838
5,006,978
175,000
225,000
382,000
2,707,000
1,006,079
214,043
150,082
341,070
100,000
150,000
387,500
150,000
218,758
300,000
225,034

Beginning
Balance
July 1, 2016
$

104,618
1,489,552
121,872
527,226
238,238
174,826
293,642
159,698
207,796
5,186,356
189,997
244,329
494,670
2,845,438
1,145,615
379,899
172,501
375,893
110,564
193,296
411,673
168,526
291,497
326,044
236,941

Cash
Contributions/
Sate Match
Received
$

60,000
1,000
393,002
200,000
455
400,000
-

Net
Investments
Earnings
$

10,619
150,687
12,615
58,790
24,182
17,702
29,766
16,205
21,510
556,466
19,284
24,794
50,108
287,449
116,949
39,069
17,512
57,125
11,187
20,008
41,414
17,009
29,793
71,042
24,043

Expenditures
$

4,400
63,400
19,500
10,000
7,300
12,600
6,800
220,740
8,000
10,400
22,100
127,900
47,200
7,075
7,300
16,000
4,700
1,200
18,500
7,100
12,365
14,000
10,100

Ending
Corpus
June 30, 2017
$

100,000
1,362,550
100,000
540,000
226,000
164,639
260,911
150,000
166,838
5,399,980
175,000
225,000
382,000
2,707,000
1,006,079
214,043
150,082
541,070
100,000
150,000
387,500
150,000
219,213
700,000
225,034

Ending
Balance
June 30, 2017
$

110,837
1,576,839
134,487
626,516
252,420
186,228
310,808
169,103
229,306
5,915,084
201,281
258,723
522,678
3,004,987
1,215,364
411,893
182,713
617,018
117,051
212,104
434,587
178,435
309,380
783,086
250,884
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
MAJOR GIFTS PROGRAM
SCHEDULES OF RECEIPTS, EXPENDITURES, AND ENDOWMENT BALANCES (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Beginning
Corpus
July 1, 2016

Name of Major Gift
Kelly
Keys
Kleman
Kraft
Kuss
Lester
Liebert #1
Liebert #2
Lucas
Lutgert
Lutgert College of Business
Manchester
Meftah
Moorings Park
Nason
Northern Trust
O'Bannon
Oulton
Perry
Rockin' Christmas
Rogaski

$

4,580,886
150,000
200,000
173,334
57,750
227,159
90,911
4,000,252
150,000
853,896
4,001,000
240,000
535,500
155,150
100,000
150,000
166,588
368,611
242,350
100,400
150,000

Beginning
Balance
July 1, 2016
$

5,078,304
163,175
216,148
258,847
183,975
58,030
265,237
98,875
4,367,217
205,579
958,811
4,194,176
574,946
171,548
109,066
210,407
182,201
407,362
253,788
108,502
160,488

Cash
Contributions/
Sate Match
Received
$

21,574
50,000
-

Net
Investments
Earnings
$

512,708
16,556
21,934
18,924
5,892
27,235
10,034
446,818
20,713
98,761
423,769
26,511
58,688
17,847
11,070
21,202
19,877
41,361
25,717
11,011
16,287

Expenditures
$

217,600
7,000
9,200
2,500
2,400
10,206
4,200
186,800
8,195
37,305
184,900
8,400
21,500
7,300
4,600
8,347
113
17,800
10,900
4,600
6,800

Ending
Corpus
June 30, 2017
$

4,580,886
150,000
200,000
173,334
57,750
227,159
90,911
4,000,252
150,000
853,896
4,001,000
240,000
535,500
176,724
100,000
150,000
216,588
368,611
242,350
100,400
150,000

Ending
Balance
June 30, 2017
$

5,373,412
172,731
228,882
275,271
187,467
75,059
271,071
358,893
4,379,735
267,035
1,197,680
4,212,287
612,134
203,669
115,536
223,262
251,965
430,923
268,605
114,913
169,975

36

95

FGCU Board of Trustees Audit and Compliance Committee - December 3, 2018

FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
MAJOR GIFTS PROGRAM
SCHEDULES OF RECEIPTS, EXPENDITURES, AND ENDOWMENT BALANCES (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Beginning
Corpus
July 1, 2016

Name of Major Gift
Schoen Foundation
Siebert
Slocum
Stranahan
Sulick
SWFL Wine & Food
Tier Electric
Vitelli
von Arx
W. Thomas Howard
Wells Fargo
Williams
Zepcevski

Beginning
Balance
July 1, 2016

Cash
Contributions/
Sate Match
Received

Net
Investments
Earnings

Expenditures

Ending
Corpus
June 30, 2017

Ending
Balance
June 30, 2017

$

455,276
317,411
105,000
209,545
150,050
150,000
100,000
300,000
250,000
188,249
150,000
100,000
250,000

$

470,039
336,138
114,198
262,095
166,614
162,468
100,519
322,728
325,021
257,952
158,889
109,656
277,833

$

973,006
-

$

48,060
34,115
11,591
26,541
16,907
16,487
10,370
33,040
32,334
25,945
16,048
11,324
28,195

$

12,400
14,200
4,800
11,200
7,100
6,900
1,300
13,800
13,800
10,900
6,800
1,000
11,800

$

455,276
317,411
105,000
209,545
150,050
150,000
100,000
1,273,006
250,000
188,249
150,000
100,000
250,000

$

505,699
356,053
120,989
277,436
176,421
172,055
109,589
1,314,974
343,555
272,997
168,137
119,980
294,228

$

34,167,800

$

37,381,539

$

2,099,037

$

3,889,200

$

1,535,346

$

36,266,837

$

41,834,430
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION BY ACCOUNT TYPE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total

Endowment

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

$

Investments

8,725,258

$

11,012,821

$

958,874

$

20,696,953

1,904,737

-

-

7,249

-

-

7,249

Prepaid lease

11,424

15,720

-

27,144

Pledges receivable

22,000

845,437

-

867,437

Royalties receivable

64,236

-

-

64,236

10,734,904

11,873,978

958,874

23,567,756

-

4,221,293

90,237,906

94,459,199

Accounts receivable

Total Current Assets

1,904,737

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted investments

6,240

4,674

-

10,914

Pledges receivable, net of current portion

Prepaid lease, net of current portion

-

1,206,586

-

1,206,586

Surrender value of insurance policy

-

119,624

-

119,624
454,285

454,285

-

-

Land held for resale

Land held for investment

-

16,186

-

16,186

Land holdings

-

11,693,500

-

11,693,500

460,525

17,261,863

90,237,906

107,960,294

11,195,429

29,135,841

91,196,780

131,528,050

17,198

45,214

-

62,412

-

79,307

-

79,307

17,198

124,521

-

141,719

-

461,362

-

461,362

-

461,362

-

461,362

17,198

585,883

-

603,081

-

977,641

-

977,641

Expendable

-

27,572,317

16,328,233

43,900,550

Nonexpendable endowments

-

-

74,868,547

74,868,547

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Gift annuities payable
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Gift annuities payable, net of current portion
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Gift annuities

NET POSITION
Restricted:

Unrestricted
Total Net Position

11,178,231
$

11,178,231

$

27,572,317

$

-

11,178,231

91,196,780

$ 129,947,328
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION BY ACCOUNT TYPE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Unrestricted
(Restated)

Restricted
(Restated)

Total
(Restated)

Endowment

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

$

Investments

10,910,858

$

952,477

10,973,538

$

-

237,455
-

$

22,121,851
952,477

Accounts receivable

5,308

-

-

5,308

Prepaid lease

6,398

15,444

-

21,842

Pledges receivable

22,000

839,693

-

861,693

Royalties receivable

263,249

-

-

263,249

12,160,290

11,828,675

237,455

24,226,420

88,721,926

Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:

-

4,315,591

84,406,335

Prepaid lease, net of current portion

Restricted investments

5,664

11,946

-

17,610

Pledges receivable, net of current portion

5,000

1,895,500

-

1,900,500

-

74,873

-

74,873

725,553

-

-

725,553

Surrender value of insurance policy
Land held for investment
Land held for resale

-

16,186

-

16,186

Land holdings

-

11,693,500

-

11,693,500

736,217

18,007,596

84,406,335

103,150,148

12,896,507

29,836,271

84,643,790

127,376,568

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
31,188

170,422

-

201,610

Loans payable

Accounts payable

-

2,250,000

-

2,250,000

Gift annuities payable

-

75,032

-

75,032

31,188

2,495,454

-

2,526,642

-

453,341

-

453,341

-

453,341

-

453,341

31,188

2,948,795

-

2,979,983

-

856,864

-

856,864

Expendable

-

26,030,612

13,575,743

39,606,355

Nonexpendable endowments

-

-

71,068,047

71,068,047

12,865,319

-

-

12,865,319

84,643,790

$ 123,539,721

Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Gift annuities payable, net of current portion
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Gift annuities

NET POSITION
Restricted

Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

12,865,319

$

26,030,612

$

39
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BY ACCOUNT TYPE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Unrestricted

Restricted

Endowment

Total

Operating Revenues:
Contributions

$

Other income
Total Operating Revenue

570,742

$

8,027,459

$

-

$

8,598,201

300,385

2,751,070

-

3,051,455

871,127

10,778,529

-

11,649,656

-

4,716,492

-

4,716,492

24,205

3,139,552

-

3,163,757

359,928

6,554,215

-

6,914,143

Operating Expenses:
Program Services:
Program fees
Scholarships
University support
General and administrative expenses
Return of restricted contribution

1,319,731

-

-

1,319,731

1,496

2,279

-

3,775

1,705,360

14,412,538

-

16,117,898

-

19,971

-

19,971

6,398

15,444

-

21,842

6,398

35,415

-

41,813

1,711,758

14,447,953

-

16,159,711

(3,669,424)

-

(4,510,055)

Other Expenses:
Interest
Amortization

Total Operating Expenses
Operating loss

(840,631)

Nonoperating Revenues:
Interest earnings
Net investment gain
Total Nonoperating Revenues
(Loss) income before endowment contributions

269,118

4,513

-

273,631

92,181

213,272

6,613,986

6,919,439

361,299

217,785

6,613,986

7,193,070

6,613,986

2,683,015

3,724,592

3,724,592

(3,451,639)

10,338,578

6,407,607

4,993,344

(3,785,588)

(479,332)

(3,451,639)

Endowment Contributions:
Contributions to endowments

-

Change in net position

(479,332)

Transfers

(1,207,756)

Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

-

12,865,319
$

11,178,231

26,030,612
$

27,572,317

$

-

84,643,790

123,539,721

91,196,780

$ 129,947,328
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BY ACCOUNT TYPE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Unrestricted
(Restated)

Restricted
(Restated)

Endowment

Total

Operating Revenues:
Contributions

$

Other income
Total Operating Revenue

731,963

$

9,748,122

$

-

$

10,480,085

1,408,540

2,341,010

-

3,749,550

2,140,503

12,089,132

-

14,229,635

Operating Expenses:
Program Services:
Program fees

-

4,671,746

-

4,671,746

Scholarships

16,450

2,881,954

-

2,898,404

University support
General and administrative expenses

541,988

6,971,545

-

7,513,533

1,612,850

-

-

1,612,850

-

73,112

-

73,112

2,171,288

14,598,357

-

16,769,645

Return of restricted contribution

Other Expenses:
Interest
Amortization

Total Operating Expenses
Operating loss

-

78,817

-

78,817

5,920

14,454

-

20,374

5,920

93,271

-

99,191

2,177,208

14,691,628

-

16,868,836

(2,602,496)

-

(2,639,201)

(36,705)

Nonoperating Revenues:
Interest earnings

179,837

21,756

-

201,593

52,250

352,098

8,758,004

9,162,352

Net gain on sale of land held for resale

109,211

-

-

109,211

Total Nonoperating Revenues

341,298

373,854

8,758,004

9,473,156

8,758,004

6,833,955

6,345,612

6,345,612

15,103,616

13,179,567

Net investment gain

(Loss) income before endowment contributions

304,593

(2,228,642)

Endowment Contributions:
Contributions to endowments

-

Change in net position

-

304,593

(2,228,642)

Transfers

4,651,348

(1,259,987)

(3,391,361)

Net position, beginning of year

7,909,378

29,519,241

72,931,535

110,360,154

84,643,790

$ 123,539,721

Net position, end of year

$

12,865,319

$

26,030,612

$

-
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Report of Independent Auditor on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
Board of Directors
Florida Gulf Coast University Foundation, Inc.
Fort Myers, Florida
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Florida Gulf Coast University
Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Foundation's basic financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated November 2, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies, and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not
been identified. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and responses that we consider to be a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Foundation's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.
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Foundation’s Response to Finding
The Foundation’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses. The Foundation’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Tampa, Florida
November 2, 2018
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FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Finding 2018-001—Material Weakness in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting
Criteria: The Florida Gulf Coast University Foundation (the “Foundation”) is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal controls to allow material misstatements to be identified and corrected in a timely manner.
Condition: A misapplication of generally accepted accounting principles resulted in the value of certain land held
for investment to not be recorded accurately at fair value. Additionally, restricted fund balance included amounts
whose restrictions were not externally imposed.
Effect: Land held for investment and unrestricted net position was understated by approximately $454,000 and
$726,000 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Additionally, unrestricted net position was
understated and restricted net position was overstated by approximately $6,596,000 and $6,682,000 for the year
ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The effects did not involve any loss, impairment, or overstatement
of the Foundation’s assets.
Cause: An income based approach for valuing land held for investment was not performed timely. Additionally,
existing Foundation procedures did not adjust the Foundation restricted projects for non-externally restricted
amounts.
Recommendation: We recommend that management institute at thorough and timely analysis of all new
standards issued by the Government Accounting Standards Board in order to conform to such standards.
Additionally, we recommend modifying the Foundation’s financial close procedures to review and adjust for
unrestricted transfers-in to restricted net position.
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TO:

Audit Committee
Florida Gulf Coast University Foundation, Inc.

FROM:

Christopher Simoneau, Executive Director
Gerard Carrington, Chief Financial Officer

SUBJECT:

Audit Recommendations

DATE:

October 26, 2018

The following are staff’s response to finding 2018-001 by Cherry Bekeart in its Schedule of Findings and
Responses that “Land held for investment” was understated and unrestricted fund balance was
understated:
Cherry Bekeart - recommendation
We recommend that management institute at thorough and timely analysis of all new standards issued
by the Government Accounting Standards Board in order to conform to such standards. Additionally, we
recommend modifying the Foundation’s financial close procedures to review and adjust for unrestricted
transfers-in to restricted net position
Florida Gulf Coast University Foundation Inc. (Foundation) - response
Accurate GASB financial reporting in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles is of
utmost importance to the Foundation. Foundation staff will implement a process to identify new
Governmental Accounting Standards Board standards and engage accounting counsel to determine the
effect on financial reporting. In addition, Foundation staff has implemented a system to accurately
categorize and report transfers to restricted net position. Foundation staff acknowledges that past
practices have been too conservative in their approach.

Florida Gulf Coast University Foundation, Inc.
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ITEM: __5__
Florida Gulf Coast University Board of Trustees
Audit and Compliance Committee
December 3, 2018

SUBJECT: Compliance Office Charter

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION
Review the Charter, and approve a recommended version for approval by the
FGCU Board of Trustees.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION
This updated Charter for FGCU's Compliance Office is a formal document that
outlines the purpose, authority, mission, scope of work, and responsibilities of a
compliance office; and provides for an appropriate governance structure, access
to documents and personnel in order to carry out the duties and responsibilities
of the office, and a periodic assessment of the Charter. This Charter was
approved at the June 13, 2017 meeting of the FGCU Board of Trustees, and this
is the first revision.
Board of Governors Regulation 4.003 State University Compliance and Ethics
Programs requires that each state university system chief compliance office is
governed by a charter approved by the board of trustees and reviewed at least
once every three (3) years for consistency with applicable Board of Governors
and university regulations, professional standards, and best practices.

Supporting Documentation Included: (1) Redlined Updated Compliance Office
Charter, and (2) Clean Updated Compliance Office Charter
Prepared by: Director of Equity, Ethics, and Compliance and Title IX Coordinator
Precious Gunter
Legal Review by: Vice President and General Counsel Vee Leonard (August 19,
2018)
Submitted by: Director of Equity, Ethics and Compliance, and Title IX
Coordinator Precious Gunter
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FGCU COMPLIANCE AND ETHICS OFFICE CHARTERFGCU
COMPLIANCE OFFICE CHARTER
1.0

PURPOSE
The purpose of this Charter is to:
 Identify the authority, mission, scope, and responsibilities of Florida Gulf Coast
University’s (FGCU’s) Compliance and Ethics Office (hereinafter referred to as the
Compliance Office).;
 Ensure that the Compliance Office adheres to a the Florida cCode of eEthics,
maintains organizational independence, and has unrestricted access to FGCU
records and personnel, as well as the records of its affiliated organizations.; and
 Provide for a periodic review of and changes to the Charter, as necessary.
A separate charter governs the duties and responsibilities of the Audit and Compliance
Committee of the FGCU Board of Trustees.

2.0

AUTHORITY
Board of Governors (BOG) Regulation 4.003, State University System Compliance and
Ethics Programs, requires each Bboard of Ttrustees to implement a university-wide
compliance and ethics program that promotes ethical conduct and maximizes
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and policies. The BOG Regulation
requires FGCU to designate a Cchief Ccompliance Oofficer who shall be governed by a
charter approved by the Bboard of Ttrustees.
FGCU’s Compliance Office is housed in the Office of Institutional Equity and Compliance
(OIEC). The Director of Equity, Ethics, and Compliance, and Title IX Coordinator is
responsible to the President for all matters related to equal opportunity and Title IX, and
also serves as the University’s designated chief compliance officer, overseeing the OIEC
and the University’s compliance and ethics program. As the Chief Compliance Officer,
he/she reports functionally to the Audit and Compliance Committee through its Chair,
on behalf of the Board of Trustees, and administratively to the President. Additionally,
in regards to discrimination and Title IX matters, he/she reports solely and directly to
the President.

3.0

MISSION
The mission of FGCU’s Compliance Office is to assist FGCU with promoting an
organizational culture that encourages ethical conduct and a commitment to
compliance.

4.0

SCOPE OF WORK
The scope of work for the Compliance Office is to:
 Encourage and support ethical behavior, a culture of integrity, and a commitment to
compliance into all facets of the University.;
 Provide University stakeholders with a reporting mechanism to bring forward goodfaith concerns of wrongdoing, without fear of retaliation.;
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FGCU COMPLIANCE AND ETHICS OFFICE CHARTERFGCU
COMPLIANCE OFFICE CHARTER













5.0

Respond to employee inquiries about compliance and ethics-related matters and
assist employees with understanding University policies and regulations, as well as
state and federal laws and rules pertaining to compliance and ethics.;
Disseminate and communicate information about compliance and ethics-related
laws, rules, regulations, and policies.;
Conduct ongoing oversight of compliance with the laws, rules, regulations, and
policies.;
Identify and evaluate risks critical to the University and ensure that the risks are
properly managed by the appropriate University component.;
Administer and coordinate a compliance and ethics training program.;
Chair a Ccompliance Ccommittee of University employees to collaborate with and
provide proactive guidance for University employees responsible for various
program areas with compliance functions.;
Chair an investigations working group to triage concerns received through the
University’s hotline to ensure consistent and appropriate responses to good-faith
concerns; and
Review and provide advicese to management on compliance-related issues.;
andconflict of interest issues and critical institutional risks.
Develop a Compliance and Ethics Program that consists of (Program) as point of
coordination of and responsible for activities that promote ethical conduct and
maximize compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, policies, and
procedures.

RESPONSIBILITIES
The responsibilities of the Compliance Office are to:
 Develop and direct the University’s compliance and ethics function.;
 Provide leadership, oversight, and expert advice to ensure appropriate
development, interpretation, and implementation of the University’s policies and
regulations pertaining to compliance, in accordance with state and federal laws.; of
the Code of Ethics For Public Officers and Employees as codified in Florida Statutes,
as well as University policies and regulations and state and federal laws and rules
pertaining to compliance and ethics;
 Prepare, implement, and manage the University’s Compliance and Ethics Program
Plan as approved of activities for approval by the President, Chair of the Audit and
Compliance Committee, and the FGCU Board of Trustees; revise the Plan as
necessary.;
 Develop and implement compliance training and/or awareness programs.
 Develop and providegive compliance and ethics training to the FGCU Board of
Trustees, the President and Cabinet, and employees to assist the University
community members with performing their jobs, understanding compliance issues,
and infusing an ethical framework into the fabric of the University.;

Page 2 of 5

107

FGCU Board of Trustees Audit and Compliance Committee - December 3, 2018

FGCU COMPLIANCE AND ETHICS OFFICE CHARTERFGCU
COMPLIANCE OFFICE CHARTER




















6.0

Engage in investigations, monitoring activities, or risk assessments for the University
and its affiliated organizations to prevent and detect misconduct or violations of
institutional policies or applicable laws and regulations.
Develop a Program consistent with Florida’s Code of Ethics for Public Officers and
Employees, and Chapter 8 of the Federal Sentencing Guidelines Manual.;
Measure and report on the effectiveness of the Program to the President and the
Chair of the Audit and Compliance Committee.;
Administer and promote the FGCU hotline, an anonymous mechanism available for
individuals to report potential or actual misconduct and violations of University
policy, regulation, or law, and ensure that no individual faces retaliation for
reporting a potential or actual violation when such report is made in good faith.;
Ensure that managers responsible for compliance functions within the University,
such as equal opportunity, athletics, public safety, sponsored programs, financial
aid, environmental health and safety, finance, and procurement, for example,
coordinate and communicate program matters of substantial import with the Chief
Compliance Officer.;
Oversee the processing of internal reviews received through the Hotlinecomplaints,
refer concerns to an appropriate University office for review and disposition (such as
General Counsel, Internal Audit, or Institutional Equity and Compliance Human
Resources) and track and follow up through completion of the review.;
Bring to the attention of the President and the Chair of the Audit and Compliance
Committee, through regular communication, all compliance and ethics-related
matters of substantial import and all credible evidence of alleged misconduct,
including criminal conduct, toconduct, the attention of the President and the Chair
of the Audit and Compliance Committee of the FGCU Board of Trustees, as well as
the Board of Governors’ Inspector General, as applicable.;
Prepare an annual report for approval by the President, Chair of the Audit and
Compliance Committee, and the FGCU Board of Trustees regarding activities,
accomplishments, and the effectiveness of the compliance and ethics program, and
provide a copy of the approved annual report to the Board of Governors.;
Ensure that an initial external review of the compliance and ethics program to
determine its effectiveness is conducted no later than November 2021 and that a
subsequent external review is conducted at least once in each successive five-year
period.; and
Perform other activities consistent with this Charter, as deemed necessary by the
President and/or the Chair of the Audit and Compliance Committee of the FGCU
Board of Trustees..; and
Exercise due diligence to exclude from the University and its affiliated organizations
individuals whom it knows, or should have known, to have engaged in conduct not
consistent with the University’s Compliance Program. an effective Program.

CODE OF ETHICS
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FGCU COMPLIANCE AND ETHICS OFFICE CHARTERFGCU
COMPLIANCE OFFICE CHARTER
FGCU’s designated Chief Compliance Officer shall abide by the Code of Ethics for Public
Officers and Employees codified in the Florida Statutes at Title X, Chapter 112, Part III.
The designated Chief Compliance Officer shall also follow the Code of Ethics of any
relevant professional organizations to which he/she may belong.
7.0

INDEPENDENCE AND REPORTING
To ensure the impartial and unbiased judgment essential to the proper conduct of the
compliance and ethics function, the designated Chief Compliance Officer is
organizationally independent of the employees and managers who seek the advice and
assistance of the Compliance Office. The Chief Compliance Officer reports functionally
to the Chair of the Audit and Compliance Committee of the FGCU Board of Trustees and
administratively to the President.

8.0

ACCESS
The designated Chief Compliance Officer shall have full, free, and unrestricted access to
all University information, documents, records, and personnel necessary to carry out the
duties and responsibilities of the Compliance Office.

9.0

PERIODIC ASSESSMENT
The designated Chief Compliance Officer shall review the Charter at least once every
three years for consistency with applicable Board of Governors and FGCU regulations
and policies, professional standards, and best practices; and make revisions to the
Charter, as necessary.
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FGCU COMPLIANCE AND ETHICS OFFICE CHARTERFGCU
COMPLIANCE OFFICE CHARTER
Prepared By

________________________________________________
__________________
Stacey P. ChadosPrecious G. Gunter, Director of Equity, Ethics, and Compliance
Designated Chief Compliance Officer
Date

Reviewed By

________________________________________________
Michael V. Martin, President

__________________
Date

________________________________________________
Joseph G. Fogg III, Chair, Audit and Compliance Committee

__________________
Date

Approved By

________________________________________________
J. Dudley GoodletteBlake Gable, Chair, Board of Trustees

__________________
Date
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FGCU COMPLIANCE OFFICE CHARTER
1.0

PURPOSE
The purpose of this Charter is to:
 Identify the authority, mission, scope, and responsibilities of Florida Gulf Coast
University’s (FGCU’s) Compliance Office (hereinafter referred to as the Compliance
Office).
 Ensure that the Compliance Office adheres to the Florida Code of Ethics, maintains
organizational independence, and has unrestricted access to FGCU records and
personnel, as well as the records of its affiliated organizations.
 Provide for a periodic review of and changes to the Charter, as necessary.
A separate charter governs the duties and responsibilities of the Audit and Compliance
Committee of the FGCU Board of Trustees.

2.0

AUTHORITY
Board of Governors (BOG) Regulation 4.003, State University System Compliance and
Ethics Programs, requires each Board of Trustees to implement a university-wide
compliance and ethics program that promotes ethical conduct and maximizes
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and policies. The BOG Regulation
requires FGCU to designate a Chief Compliance Officer who shall be governed by a
charter approved by the Board of Trustees.
FGCU’s Compliance Office is housed in the Office of Institutional Equity and Compliance
(OIEC). The Director of Equity, Ethics, and Compliance, and Title IX Coordinator is
responsible to the President for all matters related to equal opportunity and Title IX, and
also serves as the University’s designated chief compliance officer, overseeing the OIEC
and the University’s compliance and ethics program. As the Chief Compliance Officer,
he/she reports functionally to the Audit and Compliance Committee through its Chair,
on behalf of the Board of Trustees, and administratively to the President. Additionally,
in regards to discrimination and Title IX matters, he/she reports solely and directly to
the President.

3.0

MISSION
The mission of FGCU’s Compliance Office is to assist FGCU with promoting an
organizational culture that encourages ethical conduct and a commitment to
compliance.

4.0

SCOPE OF WORK
The scope of work for the Compliance Office is to:
 Encourage and support ethical behavior, a culture of integrity, and a commitment to
compliance into all facets of the University.
 Provide University stakeholders with a reporting mechanism to bring forward goodfaith concerns of wrongdoing without fear of retaliation.
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FGCU COMPLIANCE OFFICE CHARTER











5.0

Respond to employee inquiries about compliance and ethics-related matters and
assist employees with understanding University policies and regulations, as well as
state and federal laws and rules pertaining to compliance and ethics.
Disseminate and communicate information about compliance and ethics-related
laws, rules, regulations, and policies.
Conduct ongoing oversight of compliance with the laws, rules, regulations, and
policies.
Identify and evaluate risks critical to the University and ensure that the risks are
properly managed by the appropriate University component.
Administer and coordinate a compliance and ethics training program.
Chair a Compliance Committee of University employees to collaborate with and
provide proactive guidance for University employees responsible for various
program areas with compliance functions.
Review and provide advice to management on compliance-related issues.
Develop a Compliance and Ethics Program that consists of activities that promote
ethical conduct and maximize compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules,
policies and procedures.

RESPONSIBILITIES
The responsibilities of the Compliance Office are to:
 Develop and direct the University’s compliance and ethics function.
 Provide leadership, oversight, and expert advice to ensure appropriate
development, interpretation, and implementation of the University’s policies and
regulations pertaining to compliance, in accordance with state and federal laws.
 Prepare, implement, and manage the University’s Compliance and Ethics Program
Plan as approved by the President, Chair of the Audit and Compliance Committee,
and the FGCU Board of Trustees; revise the Plan as necessary.
 Develop and implement compliance training and/or awareness programs.
 Develop and provide compliance and ethics training to the FGCU Board of Trustees,
the President and Cabinet, and employees to assist the University community
members with performing their jobs, understanding compliance issues, and infusing
an ethical framework into the fabric of the University.
 Engage in investigations, monitoring activities, or risk assessments for the University
and its affiliated organizations to prevent and detect misconduct or violations of
institutional policies or applicable laws and regulations.
 Develop a Program consistent with Florida’s Code of Ethics for Public Officers and
Employees, and Chapter 8 of the Federal Sentencing Guidelines Manual.
 Measure and report on the effectiveness of the Program to the President and the
Chair of the Audit and Compliance Committee.
 Administer and promote the FGCU hotline, an anonymous mechanism available for
individuals to report potential or actual misconduct and violations of University
policy, regulation, or law, and ensure that no individual faces retaliation for
reporting a potential or actual violation when such report is made in good faith.
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6.0

Ensure that managers responsible for compliance functions within the University,
such as equal opportunity, athletics, public safety, sponsored programs, financial
aid, environmental health and safety, financeand procurement, coordinate and
communicate program matters of substantial import with the Chief Compliance
Officer.
Oversee the processing of internal complaints, refer concerns to an appropriate
University office for review and disposition (such as General Counsel, Internal Audit,
or Human Resources).
Bring to the attention of the President and the Chair of the Audit and Compliance
Committee, through regular communication, all compliance and ethics-related
matters of substantial import and all credible evidence of alleged misconduct,
including criminal conduct, as well as the Board of Governors’ Inspector General, as
applicable.
Prepare an annual report for approval by the President, Chair of the Audit and
Compliance Committee, and the FGCU Board of Trustees regarding activities,
accomplishments, and the effectiveness of the compliance and ethics program, and
provide a copy of the approved annual report to the Board of Governors.
Ensure that an initial external review of the compliance and ethics program to
determine its effectiveness is conducted no later than November 2021 and that a
subsequent external review is conducted at least once in each successive five-year
period.
Perform other activities consistent with this Charter, as deemed necessary by the
President and/or the Chair of the Audit and Compliance Committee of the FGCU
Board of Trustees.
Exercise due diligence to exclude from the University and its affiliated organizations
individuals whom it knows, or should have known, to have engaged in conduct not
consistent with the University’s Compliance Program.

CODE OF ETHICS
FGCU’s designated Chief Compliance Officer shall abide by the Code of Ethics for Public
Officers and Employees codified in the Florida Statutes at Title X, Chapter 112, Part III.
The designated Chief Compliance Officer shall also follow the Code of Ethics of any
relevant professional organizations to which he/she may belong.

7.0

INDEPENDENCE AND REPORTING
To ensure the impartial and unbiased judgment essential to the proper conduct of the
compliance and ethics function, the designated Chief Compliance Officer is
organizationally independent of the employees and managers who seek the advice and
assistance of the Compliance Office. The Chief Compliance Officer reports functionally
to the Chair of the Audit and Compliance Committee of the FGCU Board of Trustees and
administratively to the President.

8.0

ACCESS
Page 3 of 5
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The designated Chief Compliance Officer shall have full, free, and unrestricted access to
all University information, documents, records, and personnel necessary to carry out the
duties and responsibilities of the Compliance Office.
9.0

PERIODIC ASSESSMENT
The designated Chief Compliance Officer shall review the Charter at least once every
three years for consistency with applicable Board of Governors and FGCU regulations
and policies, professional standards, and best practices; and make revisions to the
Charter, as necessary.
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________________________________________________
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Designated Chief Compliance Officer
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Date
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________________________________________________
Michael V. Martin, President
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Date
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Date
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Date
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ITEM: __6_
Florida Gulf Coast University Board of Trustees
Audit and Compliance Committee
December 3, 2018

SUBJECT: Audit and Compliance Committee Charter

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ACTION
Review the Charter, and approve a recommended version for approval by the
FGCU Board of Trustees.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION
This updated Charter identifies the authority under which the Audit and
Compliance Committee (Committee) of the Florida Gulf Coast University Board
of Trustees (FGCU) operates, as well as the composition, meeting protocol, and
responsibilities of the Committee. This Charter was approved at the June 13,
2017 meeting of the FGCU Board of Trustees, and this is the first revision.
Board of Governors (BOG) Regulations 4.002 (State University System Chief
Audit Executives) and 4.003 (State University Compliance and Ethics Programs)
require each board of trustees to establish a committee responsible for the
governance oversight of the internal and external audit functions, and the
compliance and ethics program.

Supporting Documentation Included: (1) Redlined Updated FGCU Audit and
Compliance Committee Charter, and (2) Clean Updated FGCU Audit and
Compliance Committee Charter
Prepared by: Director of Equity, Ethics, and Compliance and Title IX Coordinator
Precious Gunter, and Director of Internal Audit William Foster
Legal Review by: Vice President and General Counsel Vee Leonard (August 19,
2018)
Submitted by: Director of Equity, Ethics and Compliance, and Title IX
Coordinator Precious Gunter
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1.0

PURPOSE
The purpose of this Charter is to identify the authority under which the Audit and
Compliance Committee (Committee) of the Florida Gulf Coast University Board of
Trustees (FGCU) operates, as well as the composition, meeting protocol, and
responsibilities of the Committee.
The Committee is appointed by the Chair of the FGCU Board of Trustees to assist the
Board in discharging its oversight responsibilities with respect to the:
 The Qqualifications, independence, and performance of the internal and external
audit functions, as well as the compliance and ethics program.;
 The integrityIntegrity of the financial statements for the university, as well as its
two direct support organizations which are the Financing Corporation and
Foundation.;
 The Ssystem of internal controls and risk assessment.; and
 The Pprocess for monitoring compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
meeting regulatory requirements, and promoting ethical conduct.
Related but separate charters govern the duties and responsibilities of the Office of
Internal Audit and the Office of Compliance and Ethics.

2.0

AUTHORITY
The Committee is authorized by the:
 Board of Governors (BOG) Regulation 4.002(2), State University System Chief
Audit Executives, and BOG Regulation 4.003 (3), State University System
Compliance and Ethics Programs, which requires each board of trustees to
establish a committee responsible for addressing audit, financial-aid, fraudrelated, controls, and investigative and compliance-related matters. The
committee Committee will be referred to as the Audit and Compliance Committee
with a charter approved by the board Board of trusteesTrustees.


BOG Regulation 4.003(3), State University Compliance and Ethics Programs, which
requires each Bboard of Ttrustees to assign responsibility for providing
governance oversight of the compliance and ethics program to the Ccommittee of
the Bboard responsible for audit and compliance, and that the charter required by
BOG Regulation 4.002(2) address such governance oversight.



The Bylaws for the FGCU Board of Trustees provide for an Audit and Compliance
Committee to review and recommend for consideration by the Board, charters,

Approved: September x, 2017
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plans, policies, and other documents related to the audit and compliance
functions of the university.

The Committee is authorized to:
 Perform activities within the scope of this Charter.
 Engage independent counsel and other consultants /advisorsor advisors, as
necessary.
 Have full, free, and unrestricted access to all University information, documents,
records, and personnel, including that of the University’s direct support
organizations.
 Provide oversight and direction of the internal audit and compliance and ethics
programs, and be knowledgeable of the effectiveness of the programs.
 Receive informational briefings and reports on matters of substantial import from
external, state, and regulatory auditors, as well as other independent consultants.
 Conduct an internal investigation, or authorize an external investigation, into any
substantive matter under the purview of this Charter that the Committee deems
appropriate.
 Perform other related duties as assigned by the Chair of the FGCU Board of
Trustees.
3.0

COMPOSITION
 The Committee shall consist of at least three (3) members of the FGCU Board of
Trustees with sufficient in financial expertise and ability to enable them to
discharge their responsibilities. and include Aat least one member must be who is
a “financial expert.”1
 The Chair of the FGCU Board of Trustees shall appoint and remove the Chair and
members of the Committee.
 The Chair and members shall serve on the Committee until their resignation or
replacement.
 The Chair and members of the Committee shall be independent and objective in
the discharge of their responsibilities, and be free of any business or other
relationship that could materially interfere with, or reasonably be perceived to
materially interfere with, the independent exercise of their judgment.
 The Chair of the FGCU Board of Trustees may not serve as the Chair of the Audit
and Compliance Committee.

1 Under SEC Regulations and NYSE Rules, a financial expert is defined as a person who has the following attributes: (i) an understanding of generally

accepted accounting principles and financial statements; (ii) the ability to assess the general application of such principles in connection with the
accounting for estimates, accruals, and reserves; (iii) experience preparing, auditing, analyzing or evaluating financial statements or experience
actively supervising one or more persons engaged in such activities; (iv) an understanding of internal controls and procedures for financial
reporting; and (v) an understanding of audit committee functions.

Approved: September x, 2017
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4.0

MEETINGS
 A majority of Committee members present at a Committee meeting constitutes
quorum for purposes of conducting Committee business.
 The Committee will meet at least three times a year, with discretion to convene
additional meetings, as necessary. Committee meetings may be conducted by
telephone conference call or any other technological means. All Committee
members are expected to attend each meeting.
 Committee meetings shall be open and noticed to the public in accordance with
Article I, Section 24 of the Florida Constitution and the requirements of Chapter
286, Florida Statutes.
 The Committee may invite University employees and external consultants to
attend meetings and provide pertinent information, as necessary.
 Meeting agendas will be prepared and provided to Committee members in
advance of meetings, along with appropriate briefing materials. Minutes of
Committee meetings will be prepared, maintained, and posted.
 The Committee may ask members of management or other individuals to provide
pertinent information as necessary. In addition, the Committee may request
special reports from University or DSO management on topics that may enhance
its understanding of its activities and operations.

5.0

RESPONSIBILITIES
The Committee will, in coordination with the Chief Audit Executive, carry out the
following responsibilities, which apply to the financial statements of the University and
to those of all direct support organizations (DSOs), and other component units:
The Committee will carry out the following responsibilities:
Financial Statements
 Review significant accounting and reporting issues, including complex or unusual
transactions and highly judgmental areas, and recent professional and regulatory
pronouncements, and understand their impact on the financial statements.
 Review with management and the external auditors the results of the audit,
including any difficulties encountered.
 Review the annual financial statements, and consider whether they are
complete, consistent with information known to Committee members, and
reflect appropriate accounting principles.
 Review with management and the external auditors all matters required to be
communicated to the Committee under Government Auditing Standards.
 These items apply to the financial statements of the University, and to those of
all direct-support organizations (DSOs) related to the University.

Approved: September x, 2017
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Internal Controls
 Consider the effectiveness of the University and its DSOs’ internal control
environment, including information technology security and control.
 Understand the scope of internal and external auditors’ review of internal control
over financial reporting, and obtain reports on significant findings and
recommendations, together with management’s responses.
Internal Audit
 Review and recommend approval of the Office of Internal Audit Charter to the
Board of Trustees.
 Provide input to the President in the appointment, replacement, or removal of
the Director of Internal Audit.
 Annually review the Office of Internal Audit’s functional and administrative
reporting for appropriate independence.
 Annually review, with the Director of Internal Audit, the Audit Work Plan,
activities, staffing, and organizational structure of the internal audit function.
 Review the effectiveness of the internal audit function, including conformance
with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal
Auditing.
External Audit
 Review the external auditors’ proposed audit scope and approach, including
coordination of effort with internal audit.
Compliance and Ethics
 Provide input to the President in the appointment, replacement, or removal of
the Chief Compliance and Ethics Officer.
 Review and recommend approval of the Compliance and Ethics Office Charter,
Program Plan, and annual report to the FGCU Board of Trustees.
 Review the effectiveness of the Uuniversity’s Ssystem to monitor compliance
with BOG Regulations, as well as federal, state, and university regulations, and
policies.
 Review the findings of any internal or external examination or investigation and
ensure the university implements agreed upon recommendations to correct
instances of noncompliance.
 Review the independence, qualifications, activities, resources and structure of
the University’s compliance and ethics program to ensure there are no unjustified
restrictions or limitations.
 Review the effectiveness of the compliance and ethics program to prevent or
detect criminal conduct, unethical behavior, or noncompliance. When such

Approved: September x, 2017
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conduct is detected, ensure that the University takes all reasonable steps to
prevent further similar misconduct from recurringreoccurring.
 Ensure that the Uuniversity has in place and publicizes a mechanism for
individuals to report allegations of wrongdoing, and ensure that no individual
faces retaliation for reporting a good-faith concern.
 Obtain regular updates regarding compliance matters from the President to the
Chair of the Audit and Compliance Committee.
Obtain regular updates from the Chief Compliance and Ethics Officer regarding
compliance and ethics matters, and ensure that matters of substantial import are
received, discussed, and appropriately resolved.


Reporting
 Provide updates to the FGCU Board of Trustees about Committee activities, issues,
and make recommendations on matters that could cause significant financial,
legal, reputational, or operational risk to the University or its direct support
organizations.

, as appropriate, for the Board’s consideration and approval..
 Receive a summary of findings from completed internal and external audits and
the status of implementing related recommendations.
 Receive a summary of findings from completed reports related to the compliance,
ethics, or risk programs.
 Provide an open avenue of communication between internal auditing, the
external auditors, and the FGCU Board of Trustees.
 Ensure the FGCU Board of Trustees is briefed on matters that could cause
significant financial, legal, reputational, or operational risk to the University or its
direct support organizations.
 Ensure that the University has a regulation that articulates how it will address any
significant and credible allegations of wrongdoing made against the Director of
Internal Audit or the Chief Compliance and Ethics Officer.
 Ensure that the University adopts a regulation which requires timely notification
to the Board of Governors, through the Inspector General, of any significant and
credible allegations of wrongdoing made against the President or a member of the
FGCU Board of Trustees.
Evaluation
 Review the Committee Charter at least once every three (3) years for consistency
with applicable BOG and University regulations, professional standards, and best
practices and make amendments to the Charter, as necessary.
 Ensure that revisions to the Charter are approved by the FGCU Board of Trustees.
6.0

UNIVERSITY STAFF LIAISONS

Approved: September x, 2017
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Vice President and General Counsel
Designated Chief Compliance Officer
Designated Chief Audit Executive

Approved: September x, 2017
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____________________________________________________________________________
William D. Foster, Interim Director of Internal Audit
Date
Designated Chief Audit Executive

_____________________________________________________________________________
Precious Green Gunter, Director of Equity, Ethics, and Compliance Stacey P. Chados, Chief Compliance and
Ethics Officer
Date
Designated Chief Compliance Officer

Reviewed By

______________________________________________________________________________
MikeMichael V. Martin Wilson G. Bradshaw, President
Date

______________________________________________________________________________
Joseph G. Fogg III, Chair, Audit and Compliance Committee
Date

Approved By

_______________________________________________________________________________
J. Dudley GoodletteBlake Gable, Chair, FGCU Board of Trustees
Date

Approved: September x, 2017

Page 7 of 7

123

FGCU Board of Trustees Audit and Compliance Committee - December 3, 2018

FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE CHARTER

1.0

PURPOSE
The purpose of this Charter is to identify the authority under which the Audit and
Compliance Committee (Committee) of the Florida Gulf Coast University Board of
Trustees (FGCU) operates, as well as the composition, meeting protocol, and
responsibilities of the Committee.
The Committee is appointed by the Chair of the FGCU Board of Trustees to assist the
Board in discharging its oversight responsibilities with respect to the:
 Qualifications, independence, and performance of the internal and external audit
functions, as well as the compliance and ethics program.
 Integrity of the financial statements for the university, as well as its two direct
support organizations which are the Financing Corporation and Foundation.
 System of internal controls and risk assessment.
 Process for monitoring compliance with applicable laws and regulations, meeting
regulatory requirements, and promoting ethical conduct.
Related but separate charters govern the duties and responsibilities of the Office of
Internal Audit and the Office of Compliance and Ethics.

2.0

AUTHORITY
The Committee is authorized by the:
 Board of Governors (BOG) Regulation 4.002(2), State University System Chief
Audit Executives, and BOG Regulation 4.003 (3), State University System
Compliance and Ethics Programs, which requires each board of trustees to
establish a committee responsible for addressing audit, financial-aid, fraudrelated, controls, and investigative and compliance-related matters. The
Committee will be referred to as the Audit and Compliance Committee with a
charter approved by the Board of Trustees.


BOG Regulation 4.003(3), State University Compliance and Ethics Programs, which
requires each Board of Trustees to assign responsibility for providing governance
oversight of the compliance and ethics program to the Committee of the Board
responsible for audit and compliance, and that the charter required by BOG
Regulation 4.002(2) address such governance oversight.



Bylaws for the FGCU Board of Trustees provide for an Audit and Compliance
Committee to review and recommend for consideration by the Board, charters,
plans, policies, and other documents related to the audit and compliance
functions of the university.

Approved: September x, 2017
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The Committee is authorized to:
 Perform activities within the scope of this Charter.
 Engage independent counsel and other consultants or advisors, as necessary.
 Have full, free, and unrestricted access to all University information, documents,
records, and personnel, including that of the University’s direct support
organizations.
 Provide oversight and direction of the internal audit and compliance and ethics
programs, and be knowledgeable of the effectiveness of the programs.
 Receive informational briefings and reports on matters of substantial import from
external, state, and regulatory auditors, as well as other independent consultants.
 Conduct an internal investigation, or authorize an external investigation, into any
substantive matter under the purview of this Charter that the Committee deems
appropriate.
 Perform other related duties as assigned by the Chair of the FGCU Board of
Trustees.
3.0

COMPOSITION
 The Committee shall consist of at least three (3) members of the FGCU Board of
Trustees with financial expertise and ability to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities. At least one member must be a “financial expert.”1
 The Chair of the FGCU Board of Trustees shall appoint and remove the Chair and
members of the Committee.
 The Chair and members shall serve on the Committee until their resignation or
replacement.
 The Chair and members of the Committee shall be independent and objective in
the discharge of their responsibilities, and be free of any business or other
relationship that could materially interfere with, or reasonably be perceived to
materially interfere with, the independent exercise of their judgment.
 The Chair of the FGCU Board of Trustees may not serve as the Chair of the Audit
and Compliance Committee.

4.0

MEETINGS
 A majority of Committee members present at a Committee meeting constitutes
quorum for purposes of conducting Committee business.

1 Under SEC Regulations and NYSE Rules, a financial expert is defined as a person who has the following attributes: (i) an understanding of generally

accepted accounting principles and financial statements; (ii) the ability to assess the general application of such principles in connection with the
accounting for estimates, accruals, and reserves; (iii) experience preparing, auditing, analyzing or evaluating financial statements or experience
actively supervising one or more persons engaged in such activities; (iv) an understanding of internal controls and procedures for financial
reporting; and (v) an understanding of audit committee functions.

Approved: September x, 2017
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5.0

The Committee will meet at least three times a year, with discretion to convene
additional meetings, as necessary. Committee meetings may be conducted by
telephone conference call or any other technological means. All Committee
members are expected to attend each meeting.
Committee meetings shall be open and noticed to the public in accordance with
Article I, Section 24 of the Florida Constitution and the requirements of Chapter
286, Florida Statutes.
The Committee may invite University employees and external consultants to
attend meetings and provide pertinent information, as necessary.
Meeting agendas will be prepared and provided to Committee members in
advance of meetings, along with appropriate briefing materials. Minutes of
Committee meetings will be prepared, maintained, and posted.
The Committee may ask members of management or other individuals to provide
pertinent information as necessary. In addition, the Committee may request
special reports from University or DSO management on topics that may enhance
its understanding of its activities and operations.

RESPONSIBILITIES
The Committee will, in coordination with the Chief Audit Executive, carry out the
following responsibilities, which apply to the financial statements of the University and
to those of all direct support organizations (DSOs), and other component units:

Financial Statements
 Review significant accounting and reporting issues, including complex or unusual
transactions and highly judgmental areas, and recent professional and regulatory
pronouncements, and understand their impact on the financial statements.
 Review with management and the external auditors the results of the audit,
including any difficulties encountered.
 Review the annual financial statements, and consider whether they are
complete, consistent with information known to Committee members, and
reflect appropriate accounting principles.
 Review with management and the external auditors all matters required to be
communicated to the Committee under Government Auditing Standards.
Internal Controls
 Consider the effectiveness of the University and its DSOs’ internal control
environment, including information technology security and control.
 Understand the scope of internal and external auditors’ review of internal control
over financial reporting, and obtain reports on significant findings and
recommendations, together with management’s responses.
Approved: September x, 2017
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Internal Audit
 Review and recommend approval of the Office of Internal Audit Charter to the
Board of Trustees.
 Annually review the Office of Internal Audit’s functional and administrative
reporting for appropriate independence.
 Annually review, with the Director of Internal Audit, the Audit Work Plan,
activities, staffing, and organizational structure of the internal audit function.
 Review the effectiveness of the internal audit function, including conformance
with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal
Auditing.
External Audit
 Review the external auditors’ proposed audit scope and approach, including
coordination of effort with internal audit.
Compliance
 Review and recommend approval of the Compliance Office Charter, Program
Plan, and annual report to the FGCU Board of Trustees.
 Review the effectiveness of the University’s System to monitor compliance with
BOG Regulations, as well as federal, state, and university regulations and policies.
 Review the effectiveness of the compliance and ethics program to prevent or
detect criminal conduct, unethical behavior or noncompliance. When such
conduct is detected, ensure that the University takes all reasonable steps to
prevent further similar misconduct from recurring.
 Ensure that the University has in place and publicizes a mechanism for individuals
to report allegations of wrongdoing, and ensure that no individual faces
retaliation for reporting a good-faith concern.
 Obtain regular updates regarding compliance matters from the President to the
Chair of the Audit and Compliance Committee.

Reporting
 Provide updates to the FGCU Board of Trustees about Committee activities, issues,
and make recommendations on matters that could cause significant financial,
legal, reputational, or operational risk to the University or its direct support
organizations.

.
 Receive a summary of findings from completed internal and external audits and
the status of implementing related recommendations.
 Receive a summary of findings from completed reports related to the compliance,
ethics, or risk programs.
Approved: September x, 2017
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Provide an open avenue of communication between internal auditing, the
external auditors, and the FGCU Board of Trustees.
Evaluation
 Review the Committee Charter at least once every three (3) years for consistency
with applicable BOG and University regulations, professional standards, and best
practices and make amendments to the Charter, as necessary.
 Ensure that revisions to the Charter are approved by the FGCU Board of Trustees.
6.0

UNIVERSITY STAFF LIAISONS
 General Counsel
 Designated Chief Compliance Officer
 Designated Chief Audit Executive

Approved: September x, 2017
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